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VISION

To become our customers’ preferred strategic partner in the

acoustics and electronics industries.

MISSION

Through advancements in innovative technologies, we strive to
provide value-added and distinct products to our customers.

VALUES

We, as a partner, abide by our commitment to our customers.

We, as an innovator, relentlessly pursue excellence.

We, as a team, cross the finish line together.
We, as a corporate citizen, devote ourselves to the prosperity of
our society.
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Financial Highlights

P REEE S

For the year ended 31 March #Z3A31HILFE

2018 2017 Change #1L
Operating results REEE
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 20.2 16.1 4.1pts BB
Operating profit margin (%) 45 42 ) 2K (%) 5.4 2.5 2.9pts A B
Net profit margin (%) HERI 2 (%) 2.5 0.2 2.3pts A0 E
Return on equity holders (%) EmFFA AR E (%) 4.4 0.4 4.0pts B 24
Financial position B AR R
Total assets (HK$'000) WEE(TET) 1,062,223 1,004,832 5.7%
Cash and bank deposits (HK$'000) He MRTTER(FET) 408,633 455,945 -10.4%
Shareholders’ equity (HK$'000) MRS (FAT) 690,120 664,776 3.8%
Financial ratio B St =R
Current ratio (Times) mENL R (fF) 2.9 2.9 -
Quick ratio (Times) REPLL R (FF) 2.1 2.4 -12.5%
Turnover ratio B =
Inventory turnover (days) FEEE(R) 74 62 19.4%
Debtors turnover (days) AR ERE(H) 66 68 -2.9%
Creditors turnover (days) EAERARE(H) 75 63 19.0%
Operating cycle (days) EBEH(R) 65 67 -3.0%
Dividends per share (HK cents) BREE (BL) 9.0 8.0 12.5%
Interim AR ER 4.0 1.0 300.0%
Final RH 5.0 5.0 -
Special Rl = 2.0 -100.0%
Revenue WA Shareholders’ equity &Rz Dividends per Share & 2
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Financial Summary

HMEIRE

The following is a summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive AT AE+SBEERBER AR (TART ) RHHE
income and consolidated statement of financial position of Fujikon Industrial AR Z4A 2 ENZHE REATBRAEZIES
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries:

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income mEeETHWER

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue N 1,226,121 1,155,334 1,160,220 1,264,135 1,525,276
Cost of sales 46 B AR (978,377)  (968,815)  (959,963) (1,082,479) (1,265,028)
Gross profit £ 247,744 186,519 200,257 181,656 260,248
Other (losses)/gains — net Hith (&518),/ Wz — F88 (15,973) 12,465 3,221 15,295 4,466
Distribution and selling expenses DI RIEESH (12,903) (14,718) (14,409) (22,753) (20,684)
General and administrative expenses —#& K 7TE 7 i (152,557)  (155,350)  (164,662)  (158,852)  (166,518)
Operating profit KR 66,311 28,916 24,407 15,346 77,512
Finance income — net & WA —F5E 3,278 2,193 5,983 9,473 3,783
Profit before income tax BR P15 B A A 69,589 31,109 30,390 24,819 81,295
Income tax expenses FRiS RSz H (15,310) (6,808) (5.424) (4,345) (15,352)
Profit for the year F A A 54,279 24,301 24,966 20,474 65,943
Attributable to: BB

Equity holders of the Company RATREREE A 30,518 2,770 11,259 12,602 62,318

Non-controlling interests ey Il 23,761 21,531 13,707 7,872 3,625

54,279 24,301 24,966 20,474 65,943
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Financial Summary
HBRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position GREMBERRER
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BER&iE 137,898 130,381 155,771 179,369 239,129
Investment properties wEME 1,200 1,050 3,530 3,710 3,120
Land use rights T AR 4,316 4,047 4,478 4,895 9,864
Non-current deposits and other MBS R HA
assets BE 2,758 3,713 1,930 7,303 5,202
Available-for-sale financial assets A fit H & & E 3,928 4,116 6,926 7,160 1,067
Deferred income tax assets FIEFTISHEE 5,836 4,786 3,904 2,639 4,189
Total non-current assets EmEBEEMAE 155,936 148,093 176,539 205,076 262,571
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 237,111 158,697 169,959 156,028 164,579
Trade receivables FEUE K 228,332 214,005 217,969 234,297 222,835
Other receivables H b YR IE 30,005 24,444 12,629 47,369 22,280
Other financial assets at fair value &R {EF AER
through profit or loss B E M B TS B 2,145 2,938 2,523 3,700 8,984
Available-for-sale financial assets At B EMEEE - - - - 1,266
Current income tax recoverable Ak el BRAT 1S AR 61 710 251 7,690 1,468
Cash and cash equivalents WeE MRS EEY 408,633 455,945 415,877 409,325 468,852
Total current assets REEEME 906,287 856,739 819,208 858,409 890,264
Current liabilities mEBaE
Trade payables FERTE R 205,668 194,740 140,904 159,970 163,028
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R E A
FET IR 100,078 78,931 74,189 93,103 113,032
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA - 3,870 8,372 4,034 6,834
Current income tax liabilities EHFGEHAasE 10,044 14,210 17,625 16,701 18,205
_Total current liabilities ~ EBHAFEAE 000 315790 291,751 241,090 273,808 301,099
_Netcurrentassets ~ ABAEEFE 590,497 564,988 578,118 584,601 ! 589,165
Total assets less current liabilities #2& ERnE B E 746,433 713,081 754,657 789,677 851,736
Non-current liabilities ERBAaE
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTISTAE 1,491 700 1,195 806 1,967
Net assets BEFE 744,942 712,381 753,462 788,871 849,769
4 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018



Financial Summary
HBRE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continuved) &REBIFERRT (&)

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity Ea
Capital and reserves attributable to 7 & 22 7] J& &
the Company’s equity holders BB A2 BN K i#E

Share capital B AR 42,107 42,026 42,019 41,986 41,986
Other reserves EAth A 191,739 156,810 182,890 206,604 244,820
Retained earnings R & A
— Proposed dividends —EERE 21,053 29,418 21,010 20,993 37,787
— Others —HAh 435,221 436,522 467,312 485,350 479,037

690,120 664,776 713,231 754,933 803,630

Non-controlling interests eI R 54,822 47,605 40,231 33,938 46,139
Total equity Emast 744,942 712,381 753,462 788,871 849,769

2017/2018 68 ETSBEEERERAT 5



Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

To our shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“Fujikon” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2018.

Over the past decades, we have experienced numerous peaks and troughs,
and even recently we have witnessed intense industry consolidation.
Nevertheless, we have always held the belief that perseverance and
foresight are essential in times of challenge. Having long recognised that
electro-acoustic products would evolve towards ever more sophisticated
forms, including the eventual adoption of wireless and noise cancellation
technologies, we were determined to shift our focus from price-sensitive
products to value-added products equipped with innovative solutions. Based
on such foresight, we subsequently placed tremendous effort on building a
strong business foundation that reflects such understanding. Supported by
this foundation ever since, and capitalising on the recent upswing in the
global economy as well as rise in consumer confidence, Fujikon has been
able to deliver encouraging financial results during the review year.

6 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018
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Foresight has also been the catalyst for our intense efforts on enhancing the
Group's technological and production capabilities — its core competencies
and competitive edges — so that it can succeed in a constantly and rapidly
evolving industry. We have consequently made significant investments in
product development and technological advancement, which have enabled
the Group to migrate to the premium electro-acoustic segment as well
as continuously hone its engineering prowess. Capital investments have
also been made in machinery and automation to further raise efficiency
and flexibility. The Group’s ability and expertise in developing advanced
products have not only enabled it to distance itself from its peers while
earning the trust and patronage of leading global brands, but have also
allowed it to benefit from a “first mover” advantage.

As a technology-based company, we are clearly proud of our achievements
in product development and technology applications. A clear example is
Bluetooth — a technology that underpins wireless electro-acoustic solutions
— and an area where we have been involved in for over a decade. Our
"game changer”
technology, also represents our means of meeting the needs of our

ongoing efforts in developing True Wireless, the next
customers and sophisticated consumers in the years ahead.

Also being a veteran of Active Noise Cancellation (“ANC") technology,
our developments in this area has continued; extending to Hybrid Active
Noise Cancellation (“Hybrid ANC"). Bringing together feedback and
feedforward ANC, Hybrid ANC elevates sound reproduction to a whole new
level. By leveraging our engineering prowess, we are pleased to note that
Fujikon has been able to achieve a technological milestone: Hybrid ANC
miniaturisation and its application in True Wireless so that they can be
incorporated into even more size-restrictive devices.

It is worth noting as well that through our management’s careful vetting
of both the Group’s customer and product portfolios, the Group's product
mix and client portfolio are well structured to support the most advanced/
popular headphones on the market.

Production is another important area that supports the Group's
development. Through capital investments in production complemented by
effective employee benefits and initiatives, we have been able to enhance
production efficiency and flexibility, while at the same time optimise
our workforce to meet the Group’'s goals. Yet an additional role that
production plays is facilitate Fujikon's continuous pursuit of innovation —
enabling advancements to ultimately achieve mass production as well as
allowing our customers to timely launch the latest products on the market.
Furthermore, by having greater production flexibility and efficiency, backed
by strong ties with suppliers, Fujikon was able to mitigate the impact of
two major industry challenges in the past year; namely, the increase in lead
time for materials procurement and an ongoing labour shortage, allowing
the Group to perform steadily.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

With smart headphones representing part of the new wave of technologies
that will be influencing the consumer electronics market within the
coming decade, the Group will be closely monitoring developments as it
continues its drive to innovate. Given that smart headphones possess a
number of features, such as Bluetooth compatibility and noise cancellation
— technologies that align with Fujikon's technological strengths — the
Group is well-positioned to capture business opportunities that arise.
Having remained abreast of and capitalised on numerous industry trends,
it will make every effort to extend Fujikon's track record of successes in
the development and introductions of products that leverage high-growth
opportunities.

In a time of rapid change, keeping pace let alone playing a pioneering role
is not for the fainthearted. Still, Fujikon has throughout its history sought
to lead the industry in developing the latest technologies and this spirit of
innovation remains strong. As we continue with such pursuits, we will at
the same time remain dedicated to the prudent and meticulous management
of all business facets. In this way, we will remain in full control of the
Group's future; best serve our long-standing customers; and create value for
our shareholders.

Dividends

The Board have recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per ordinary share. Together with an interim dividend of HK4.0 cents
per share already paid, a total payout of HK9.0 cents per ordinary share will
be distributed to shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
management team for their dedication and tireless efforts leading to
the encouraging performance of the Group over the past year. Also, my
utmost appreciation is extended to the entire Fujikon workforce for their
wholehearted support and diligence in fulfilling the Group’s objectives.
As always, | wish to convey my gratefulness to all of Fujikon's business
partners and shareholders for their staunch support and trust in the Group.

Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business review

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group recorded revenue of
HK$1,226.1 million (2017: HK$1,155.3 million), representing a year-on-year
increase of 6.1% when compared with the corresponding period of last year.
The rise in revenue was due to greater sales from both the headsets and
headphones segment and accessories and components segment. Gross profit
and profit attributable to equity holders amounted to HK$247.7 million (2017:
HK$186.5 million) and HK$30.5 million (2017: HK$2.8 million) respectively.
The rise in profitability, despite an increase in provision for obsolete stock
and an exchange loss incurred from appreciation of the Renminbi, was
primarily the result of an increase in handling income, the change in the
combination of products sold, as well as better control of general and
administrative expenses. Basic earnings per share were HK7.3 cents (2017:
HKO0.7 cent).

Business segment analysis

Headsets and Headphones

The headsets and headphones operation is the key revenue generator of the
Group, contributing HK$914.5 million (2017: HK$862.2 million) in segmental
revenue during the review year, an encouraging year-on-year increase of 6.1%,
and accounting for 74.6% of the Group's total revenue.

The increase in revenue is a direct reflection of consumers’ growing
preference for sophisticated wireless headphones and headsets, and
Fujikon's foresight and preparedness ahead of this trend. Being at the
forefront of Bluetooth technology development for over a decade, the
Group's innovations have consequently entered the product portfolios of
many renowned electro-acoustic brands. During the review year, the Group
continued to leverage its capability in Bluetooth technologies application to
boost new product launch and revenue growth. Besides product launches
for key clients, the management’s ongoing efforts to restructure its client
portfolio also facilitated the upturn in the segment, with a profit of HK$27.1
million recorded for the year (2017: loss of HK$29.2 million).

CEIER R SR

e JE)

HZE2018F3A31 B EFE - ANEEERFHA,226,100,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Business segment analysis (Continued)

Accessories and Components

The accessories and components business has continued to perform in
a consistently positive manner. For the year ended 31 March 2018, the
operation contributed HK$311.6 million (2017: HK$293.2 million) in
segmental revenue — accounting for 25.4% of the Group's total revenue, and
HK$61.0 million (2017: HK$50.1 million) in segmental profit.

The encouraging performance can directly be credited to the packaging
business, which has been able to generate greater sales of high gross profit
margin products. Such solid earnings mirror the overall segment’s ability to
steadily develop from an ancillary operation supporting Fujikon's vertical
integration to a fully fledged business accounting for one quarter of the
Group's annual turnover.

Prospects

Global economic growth is expected to strengthen from 3.8% in 2017 to 3.9%
in 2018, according to the International Monetary Fund', hence consumption
sentiment will likely improve still further. Though such encouraging prospects
are welcomed, the management remains highly cautious and will continue
to fortify the Group’s business foundation. Correspondingly, this will include
the further development of Bluetooth, True Wireless and Hybrid Active
Noise Cancellation (“Hybrid ANC") solutions, having most recently achieved
a breakthrough in Hybrid ANC miniaturisation and its application in True
Wireless technology. The breakthrough will result in the introduction of
Hybrid ANC in even more size-restrictive products. Also, the Group will be
directing its attention to Artificial Intelligence (“Al") Voice Assistant, an area
that holds immense potential and which the Group will seek to play a key
role in advancing its adoption. Correspondingly, Fujikon is introducing mobile
products in the coming financial year that complement Al Voice Assistant,
which the management holds guarded optimism towards.

While Fujikon's technological innovations have garnered the greatest
attention, its production capabilities are equally important in underpinning
the Group's development and growth. And as the Group continues to attract
new customers to the fold, the management recognises the significance of
maintaining production capabilities that are relevant with their needs. Having
already entered an expansion phase that saw investments in research and
development (“R&D") and production, the management will make further
investments from which the expansion phase will accelerate.

$759HAH ()
BeERESH
R RTHEBRRRFERL - B 22018F3A31H

WEFE - ZEH845 7 3P 311,600,000/ 7T(2017 -
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! https://www.imf.org/en/Publications/WEO/Issues/2018/03/20/world-economic-outlook-april-2018
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Prospects (Continued)

The constant bolstering of business operations is essential not only for
realising growth, but also for mitigating the impact of expected and unexpected
obstacles. While a labour shortage has been a persistent problem, the Group
and the entire industry also faced a new challenge in the form of a sudden
increase in lead time for electronic components procurement. Strengthening
longstanding ties with its suppliers complemented by prudent product
forecasting and implementing strategy of maintaining adequate inventory of
fast selling products, the Group had to strive hard to mitigate the impact of
the electronic component supply disruption. To address the labour shortage
issue, the Group enhanced the automation level in production as well as
offered competitive salaries to attract workforce. And to recruit and retain
technical talents for the Group’s present and long-term development, Fujikon
duly provided competitive packages, incentives programmes and on-the-job
training. The Group will continue to optimise its workforce and target clients
that are able to place bulk orders for maximising production output, as
well as seek to achieve a balance between human input and automation to
further raise efficiency and reduce costs.

With new customers joining the Group, a bunch of exciting products set for
launch and advancements continuously made in production, the management
will be looking to build growth momentum in the coming year. Given
Fujikon's depth of experience and unwavering commitment to developing
and implementing strategies for optimising all areas of operation, as well as
a workforce dedicated to realising the Group's objectives, Fujikon remains
on course to also advance its position in the market all the while remaining
true to its vision of becoming customers’ preferred strategic partner in the
acoustics and electronics industries.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR M
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Financial review
Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained at a strong financial position. Net current assets
as at 31 March 2018 amounted to approximately HK$590.5 million (2017:
HK$565.0 million). The Group's current and quick ratios were approximately
2.9 times (2017: 2.9 times) and 2.1 times (2017: 2.4 times), respectively.

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$408.6 million
as at 31 March 2018, representing a decrease of approximately 10.4%
against approximately HK$455.9 million as at 31 March 2017. Approximately
53.1%, 43.1% and 2.8% of the total cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars respectively,
and the remainders were in other currencies. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had aggregated banking facilities of approximately HK$160.6 million
(2017: HK$160.6 million) for loans and trade financing, which were fully
available for use.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China with most
transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The
Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities to which
they relate.

The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contract to manage part of
this exposure. There was no outstanding foreign exchange forward contract
as at 31 March 2018. The net fair value of foreign exchange forward contract
entered into by the Group for managing the risk relating to monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at 31 March 2017 was a liability
of HK$3.9 million. Fair value gains on derivative financial instruments
accounted for approximately HK$3.9 million (2017: HK$4.5 million) for the
year and such fair value gains did not have impact to the Group’s real cash
flow.

Furthermore, net realised losses from derivative financial instruments of
approximately HK$3.5 million (2017: HK$8.7 million) represent actual
settlements of derivative contracts during the year. The Group also had net
foreign exchange losses of approximately HK$16.4 million mainly arising from
appreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars (2017: gains HK$15.8
million mainly arising from depreciation of Renminbi against Hong Kong
dollars). If these net realised losses from derivative financial instruments and
net exchange losses/gains were taken into account, the Group recorded net
losses of approximately HK$19.9 million for the year, as compared to net
exchange gains of approximately HK$7.1 million in last year.

The recent fluctuation of Renminbi directly affected our operating costs.
The Group will continuously monitor and enter foreign exchange forward
contracts where appropriate.
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Financial review (continued)

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed a total of approximately
4,100 (2017: 4,300) employees. The staff costs (including the directors’
emoluments) accounted for approximately HK$340.2 million (2017: HK$323.5
million) during the year.

The Group has developed its human resources policies and procedures based
on performance and merit. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of its salary and bonus system.
Discretionary bonus is linked to the profit performance of the Group as well
as individual performance. Benefits include staff accommodation, medical
schemes, share option scheme, Mandatory Provident Fund for employees in
Hong Kong and state-sponsored retirement plans for employees in Mainland
China. The Group has also developed training programs to its management
and employees to ensure they are properly trained.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31 March 2018, the Company had provided corporate guarantees of
approximately HK$155.7 million (2017: HK$155.7 million) to secure banking
facilities of its subsidiaries. No facilities were utilised by the subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERERERERE

Executive Director

Mr. YEUNG Chi Hung, Johnny, M.H., aged 73, is a co-founder of the
Group. He has been the Chairman and the executive Director since 2000 and
was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 October 2011.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is instrumental in the formulation and
implementation of the business policies of the Group. Mr. Yeung was elected
the Honorary Fellowship 2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong
Kong Industries, Directors of The Year Awards 2007 (executive Director):
Listed Companies (SEHK — Non Hang Seng Index Constituents) by The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. In 2014, he was awarded the University Fellow
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, re-elected the Industrial Fellow of
Warwick University and the Medal of Honour (“M. H.") at the Seventeenth
Anniversary of the Establishment of the HKSAR. Mr. Yeung has over 50
years of experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and he was
elected the Outstanding Achievement Award of Hong Kong Electronics
Industry Council in April 2018. In addition, Mr. Yeung is the Executive
Committee Member of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong
Kong, the Chairman of Electronics and Telecommunications Training Board
of the Vocational Training Council, the President of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin
Industry and Commerce Association, the Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong
Electronics Industries Association and the Board of Supervisor of Dongguan
Electronics Industries Association, the Deputy Supervisor and the President
of Humen Branch of Dongguan City Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment respectively, the Director of the Yan Chai Hospital Board Office
and also the Trustee of Bright Future Charitable Foundation. Mr. Yeung is the
father of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. YUEN Yee Sai, Simon, aged 76, is a co-founder of the Group. He has
been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director since 2000. Mr.
Yuen is responsible for the overall strategic planning of production and
operation related affairs of the Group. He was elected the Associateship
2004 by The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries. Mr.
Yuen has over 50 years of experience in the electronics industry and has
in depth knowledge of trading in the PRC. In addition, he is the Honorary
Citizen of Dongguan City and Humen Town. Mr. Yuen is the father of Mr.
Yuen Chi King, Wyman, the executive Director of the Company.

Mr. CHOW Man Yan, Michael, aged 69, is a co-founder of the Group. He
has been the Joint Deputy Chairman and the executive Director since 2000.
He is responsible for the overall strategic planning of related affairs of the
Group. Mr. Chow was elected the Associateship 2004 by The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and the Distinguished Service
for Community Building of the Secretary for Home Affairs’ Commendation
Scheme in the year of 2015-2016. He has over 50 years of experience in
the electronics and acoustics industry, especially in production and material
management and inventory control. Mr. Chow is the brother of Ms. Chow Lai
Fung, the executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. YUEN Chi King, Wyman, aged 43, is an executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Yuen joined the Group in August 2006 and is responsible for overseeing
the implementation of corporate strategy and the financial functions of the
Group. Mr. Yuen graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a
Bachelor degree of Commerce and from Saint Louis University, United States
of America with a Master degree of Finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Yuen has worked for a few regional financial securities institutions and was
responsible for the provision of corporate finance advisory services. Mr. Yuen
has more than 10 years of experience in financial securities industry and he
is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Yuen is the son of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon, the Joint Deputy Chairman of
the Company.

Mr. YEUNG Siu Chung, Ben, aged 42, is an executive Director and Chief
Strategy Officer of the Group. In November 2002, Mr. Yeung joined Fujikon
Industrial Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, in which he served in
numerous sales and marketing and project management positions for about
3 years. Mr. Yeung re-joined the Group as an executive Director in August
2007 and is responsible for overseeing the business development functions
and implementing the corporate strategy of the Group, and committed
to modernize the company’'s management system. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from Yale University in the United States
of America and a Bachelor of Science degree in International Business
from Pepperdine University in the United States of America. Mr. Yeung has
more than 10 years of working experience in an engineering and marketing
capacity. Mr. Yeung was elected 2013 Young Industrialist Awards of Hong
Kong by Federation of Hong Kong Industries and awarded the Most Valuable
Cl0 by BT Media/CSDN in 2014. In addition, Mr. Yeung is actively engaged
in different non-governmental organisations. He is a member of the National
Committee of CPPCC of Sihui County, a member of Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council, a member of the Entrepreneurs’
Organization (EO), a member of the Youth Committee of Beijing Chinese
Overseas Friendship Association (Hong Kong), a member of the Youth Officer
of Hong Kong Wong Tai Sin Industry & Commerce Association, a member of
the Young Executive Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries and the
Current Advisor of the Yan Chai Hospital Board Office. He is the son of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, who is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

Ms. CHOW Lai Fung, aged 54, is an executive Director of the Group. Ms.
Chow joined the Group in March 2001 and was appointed as executive
Director on 1 August 2007. She is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group. She graduated from the University of Missouri-
Kansas City, United States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting. She has over 20 years of experience in management,
accounting and finance. Ms. Chow is a member of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She is the sister of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, the Joint
Deputy Chairman of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EERaREEERE

Independent non-executive Director

Dr. CHUNG Chi Ping, Roy, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, a member of each of the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee of the Company on 1 April
2014,

Dr. Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom and a Doctor of Business Administration Degree
from City University of Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in December 2015. Dr. Chung
was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the Lingnan
University in 2015, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration by the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and an Honorary Doctorate Degree
by the University of Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in 2006. He was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star (GBS) Medal and the Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) Medal by The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“The Government of the HKSAR") on 30 June 2017 and 1 July
2011 respectively. Dr. Chung was appointed as Justice of Peace by The
Government of the HKSAR on 1 July 2005. He won the Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Award in 1997 and was further awarded the Industrialist of the
Year in November 2014.

Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement of industry. He was the
Chairman of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries from July 2011 to
July 2013 and has been the Honorary President of the Federation since 5
July 2013. In addition, Dr. Chung has been appointed as the Chairman of
Vocational Training Council since 1 January 2018 and he holds positions on
a number of The Government of the HKSAR advisory committees. Dr. Chung
is also an active member of many social committees and associations. Dr.
Chung is the Founder and Chairman of Bright Future Charitable Foundation,
and whereby Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, executive Director of the
Company, is one of the trustees.

Dr. Chung is a co-founder and non-executive director of Techtronic Industries
Company Limited (stock code: 669), a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director of TK
Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 2283) and Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 345), both companies are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHE Wai Hang, Allen, aged 50, had been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company for 4 years since March 2000. In June 2005, Mr.
Che re-joined the Company as an independent non-executive Director. He
holds a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from
The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Che was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1993 and also became as a member of The
Law Society of Hong Kong in the same year. Mr. Che has been practicing as
a solicitor in Hong Kong over 20 years and is currently a partner of Wong,
Hui & Co., Solicitors.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Director (Continued)

Mr. LEE Yiu Pun, aged 56, has been an independent non-executive Director
since June 2005. Mr. Lee holds a bachelor of commerce degree majoring in
accounting and marketing from the University of Calgary, Canada. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Lee worked as the group financial controller of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings
Limited from 1994 to 1999, the financial controller of Magician Industries
(Holdings) Limited from 1999 to 2000, and deputy finance director of
Henderson China Holdings Limited from 2000 to 2001, all of which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee is currently the vice president of
finance of a private group of companies.

Senior Management

Mr. MAN Yu Ming, aged 78, is the Managing Director of Fujikon Packing
Material Company Limited. He joined the Group in July 1987.

Mr. CHEUNG Ying Chun, aged 65, is the Managing Director of Fujikon
Precision Metal Products Limited. He joined the Group in September 1988.

Mr. LAM Man Tai, Vincent, aged 51, is the Executive Vice President of
Operation of Fujikon Industrial Company Limited. He joined the Group in
March 2012.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHRE

The directors (the “Directors”) of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) have the pleasure of presenting the annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together,
the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

Principal activities and segment analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by segment
information is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and a discussion
on the Group's future business development are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 6 to 13 of this annual report.

A summary of the key performance indicators of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Financial Highlights” on page 2 of this annual report. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the year-end date 31
March 2018.

The business operations and results may be affected by various factors.
The discussion of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 13 of this annual report. The
financial risk factors are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details of risk management are set out in the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” under the paragraph headed “Risk
management and internal control” on pages 39 to 40 of this annual report.

In addition, discussions on the environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the relevant local laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group and the account of the key relationships of
the Group with its employees, customers and suppliers are set out in the
section headed "Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 47
to 67 of this annual report.
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Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 76 of this annual report.

Dividends

An interim dividend of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share was paid during
the year. The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK5.0 cents per ordinary share (the “Dividend”), subject to the approval by
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual
General Meeting”). The Dividend is expected to be paid on 5 September
2018, to those shareholders whose names appeared on the register of
members of the Company on 16 August 2018.

Other reserves

Movements in other reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in Notes 20 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Share capital and share options

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 March 2018, the Company'’s reserves of approximately HK$138,800,000
(subject to provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended))
and retained earnings of approximately HK$45,228,000 were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws (the
“Bye-Laws”) and the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWmE

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to approximately HK$237,000.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Retirement schemes

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in Note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the Group's financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on pages 3 to 5 of this annual report.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon
Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael
Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman
Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben
Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

Pursuant to bye-law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, Mr. Che
Wai Hang, Allen and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun will retire from the office of Directors
by rotation at the Annual General Meeting. Such Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting. All the
other Directors will remain in office.
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Independence of independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
the following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Interests in the Company

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10
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RARQT zEH

Number of
underlying Shares
(in respect of
share options)®

each (the “Shares”) HERAEE (3

gRO10BT2EBR(RH A BREMmS)Y
Interest of *Approximate
Beneficial Beneficiary controlled Beneficial percentage of
Name of Directors interests of a trust corporations interests Total shareholding
EEfs BEngs FREE FEHEEER BEngs @y EORRESH
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny Gk 10,521,000 - 42,571,500 - 53,092,500 12.61%
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 1,000 - 64,571,500 410,000 64,982,500 15.43%
Chow Man Yan, Michael [Ex 8,355,000 - 70,571,500%) - 78,926,500 18.74%
Yuen Chi King, Wyman R - - - 4,020,000 4,020,000 0.95%
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben BLR 28,000,000 42,571,500 - 4,020,000 74,591,500 17.711%
Chow Lai Fung EER 1,020,000 - - 3,000,000 4,020,000 0.95%

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue
(i.e. 421,067,000 ordinary shares) as at 31 March 2018.
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Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (Continued)

Interests in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

1. The 42,571,500 Shares are held by Loyal Fair Group Limited, a private limited
company wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd, which was in turn wholly
owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd was the
trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then beneficially owned by the Yeung
Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family
members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.
Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung,
Johnny.

2. The 64,571,500 Shares are held by Sky Talent Enterprises Limited, a private
limited company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

3. The 70,571,500 Shares are held by Asia Supreme Limited, a private limited
company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

4. Share options were granted to the Directors under the share option schemes
of the Company, details of which are separately disclosed under the paragraph

headed “Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures” below.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31
March 2018.

Information on share option schemes

The Company adopted share option schemes under which it may grant
options to eligible participants (including executive Directors) to subscribe
for Shares. Details of the schemes are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”).
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012,
an ordinary resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme.
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Information on share option schemes (continued)

Subject to the exercise periods, all options (to the extent not already
exercised) granted prior to the termination of the Old Scheme shall continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Old Scheme. As at 31
March 2018, no options were granted under the New Scheme.

The principal terms of the New Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose of the New Scheme

As incentive or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution to
the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the New Scheme

Any eligible employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive Director), any non-executive Director, any shareholder, any
supplier and any customer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest,
and any other party having contribution to the development of the
Group.

3. Total number of Shares available for issue under the New
Scheme and percentage to the issued share capital as at
31 March 2018

41,013,900 Shares (approximately 9.74% of the total issued share
capital as at 31 March 2018).

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under the New
Scheme

Not exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being in any 12-month period. Any further grant of options in
excess of such limit must be separately approved by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

5. The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under an option

A period (which may not expire later than 10 years from the date of
offer of that option) to be determined and notified by the Directors to
the grantee thereof.
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Information on share option schemes (continued)

6.

24

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors, there is no minimum
period required under the New Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made

A remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 on or before the
date of acceptance (which may not be later than 21 days from the date
of offer).

The basis of determining the exercise price
Being determined by the Directors and being not less than the highest

of:

a. the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

b.  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer; and

¢.  the nominal value of the Shares.

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The New Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 3 August 2012 (being the date of fulfilment of all
conditions on the adoption of the New Scheme).
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Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Movements in the share options granted to and held by the Directors under
the 0ld Scheme of the Company during the year were as follows:

Number of underlying Shares
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Granted  Exercised Lapsed Subscription
Beginning during during during End of  price per Date of Exercise period
Name of Directors of the year the year the year the year the year Share grant (dd/mm/yyyy)  Note
Ezps £ FARY  FRAE  FREXR F& BRABE RUAH TEE™(B/B/E) W
‘000 '000 '000 '000 '000 (HKS)
T Tk T T T (B7)
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 1518 3,700 - - (3,700) - 1.98 221512007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 1
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R 3,700 - - (3,700) - 1.98 221512007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 1
410 - - - 410 110 280312012 2810312013 - 27/03/2022 1
Chow Man Yan, Michael X 3,000 - - (3,000) - 198 22152007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 1
Yuen Chi King, Wyman BT 400 - - (400) - 198 22152007 22/05/2008 - 21/05/2017 1
2,020 - - - 2,020 1.10 28132012 2810312013 - 27/03/2022 1
2,000 - - - 2,000 1.10 281312012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 2
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben B 2,020 - - - 2,020 1.10 281312012 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2022 1
2,000 - - - 2,000 1.10 281312012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 2
Chow Lai Fung FER 1,000 - - - 1,000 1.10 281312012 28/03/2013 - 27/03/2022 1
2,000 - - - 2,000 1.10 281312012 28/03/2014 - 27/03/2022 2
Total: it 22,250 - - (10,800) 11,450
Notes: ks
(1) The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of grant. (1) ZEBEREASTHRLOBEHRSH —FHEESH -
(2)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of grant.  (2) ZEBREEEFHAREABEFCMERELY -
(3)  Details of other movement of share options held by employees include employees  (3) (EE(BRFEEARANENBRARETEBEHNNAR

of the Company and of its subsidiaries working under employment contract with
the Company or its subsidiaries which are regarded as “continuous contracts”
for the purpose of the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements on page

129 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable any of the Directors or the Company’s chief executive to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or holding companies was a party and in which any of the Directors or
the Company’s chief executive had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company

The following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares at 31 March 2018 amounting to 5% or more of the ordinary Shares in
issue which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which have been recorded in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

EENEHNP R

B EMBRRMEBMERBELAEALRZSIN R
FRENFEAERERE - AR B REAAH B AR
HIERABA Y ERARE 2 XBBRTEMESTHAR
AXZETRAEEEAHERAEARRZEESN -

FERRAAXALXAROGREBERD 2 Em

ATAL(WIERRRIESHEEITHAE)R2018F3
F31B#A D 81T EMATS% A £ 2 B AR B D
ZITmEORE - MEREEF RS EF EXVEE2
MEIDHZREMAAGFEE  WEEHARREIR
BRE M EIEDIE336IEEE 2 & -

*Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholders Number of Shares Capacity  Note interest

IR 3R & RHEE 54 ME *BHEREI

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited 64,571,500 Beneficial owner 2 15.34%
EmEBA

Asia Supreme Limited 70,571,500 Beneficial owner 3 16.76%
BB A

Loyal Fair Group Limited 42,571,500 Beneficial owner 4 10.11%
EmERA

Golden Hope Financial Limited 42,571,500 Interest of controlled corporation 4 10.11%
REER 2 s

Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd 42,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 4 10.11%
EFRAEBEFEARIN)

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited 42,571,500 Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 5 10.11%
EFRAEBEFTALIMN)

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen 53,092,500 Interest of spouse 6 12.61%
BRAEBLL (iR

Ms. Leung Woon Yee 64,982,500 Interest of spouse 7 15.43%
RipE L (iRl £

Ms. Cai Liting 78,926,500 Interest of spouse 8 18.74%
gERExt (iRl £

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui 74,591,500 Interest of spouse 9 17.711%
RAPNEBRLE [l £

Mr. David Michael Webb 9,796,000 Beneficial owner 2.33%
David Michael Webb 4t 4 EmHB A

Mr. David Michael Webb 27,964,000 Interest of controlled corporation 10 6.64%
David Michael Webb %t 4 REGNEE 2

Preferable Situation Assets Limited 27,964,000 Beneficial owner 10 6.64%

BaEAA

*

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of Shares in issue
(i.e. 421,067,000 ordinary shares) as at 31 March 2018.

26  Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018

BB DL TIIEN201843 8318 B 21T D 48 (8D
421,067,0003% @ A% ) 5T & -



Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

Interests in the Shares and the underlying Shares stated above represented long
positions.

Sky Talent Enterprises Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

Asia Supreme Limited was wholly owned by Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

Loyal Fair Group Limited was wholly owned by Silverfun Property (PTC) Ltd,
which was in turn wholly owned by Golden Hope Financial Limited. Silverfun
Property (PTC) Ltd was the trustee of Yeung Unit Trust, which was then
beneficially owned by the Yeung Family Trust, a discretionary trust and the
objects of which were the family members of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny,
including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben. Golden Hope Financial Limited was wholly
owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

Encyclia Investments (PTC) Limited was the trustee of Yeung Family Trust, a
discretionary trust and the objects of which were the family members of Mr.
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, including Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

Ms. Yan Yau Tai, Ellen is the wife of Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny.

Ms. Leung Woon Yee is the wife of Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon.

Ms. Cai Liting is the wife of Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael.

Ms. Zong Xiao Cui is the wife of Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben.

These Shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was owned by Mr. David Michael Webb. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. David Michael Webb was deemed to be interested in all the Shares

held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited. Mr. David Michael Webb had an
aggregate interest in 37,760,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to the Directors, there was
no other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2018.
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Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 77.1% of the Group’s total revenue and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 27.2% of the
Group's total purchases. The largest customer to the Group accounted for
approximately 23.5% of the Group's total revenue. None of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the
Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) of the
Company had an interest in these five largest customers and/or these five
largest suppliers.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's financial statements for
the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and is of the opinion that such
statements comply with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and the requirements of applicable laws, codes and regulations and
that adequate disclosure pursuant thereto have been made.

Public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board,

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 June 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate governance practices

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and endeavours in following the code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) of the “Corporate Governance Code” (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has complied with
the CG Code save for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1, which is
explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

The Board of Directors

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for the formulation of corporate strategies,
the setting of appropriate strategic policies, monitoring and controlling
the operation and financial performance of the Group, oversight of the
compliance with statutory and regulatory obligation.

The management of the Group, as delegated by the Board, is responsible for
execution of business strategies adopted, implementation of adequate system
and procedures of internal control and risk management, and oversight of
the day-to-day management of the Group's business.

To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its powers in an informed
manner, management provides the Board with monthly management report
which contains year-to-date with summaries of financial performance and key
events of the Group. The monthly management report gives Board members
a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board members to
discharge their duties.

The corporate governance duties are performed by the Board. Pursuant
to the terms of reference of the Board, the primary duties of the Board in
relation to corporate governance include introducing and proposing relevant
principles concerning corporate governance and reviewing and determining
the corporate governance policy, so as to enhance and to ensure the
corporate governance practices in the Group are in line with the relevant
requirements.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Directors during the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yuen Yee Sai, Simon (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman

Mr. Yeung Siu Chung, Ben

Ms. Chow Lai Fung

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The brief biographical information of each Director is set out in the
"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section in this
annual report. Save as disclosed therein, there is no other relationship (whether
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships) among
the members of the Board.

Board diversity policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in
August 2013. The Board recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of the Company’s performance. A truly
diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills,
industry experience, educational background, knowledge, expertise, culture,
age and gender and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All
appointments of Directors will be based on merit while taking into account
diversity. The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and the Board will review the Board Diversity Policy from time
to time to ensure it continued effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and review annually on measurable
objectives for implementing diversity on the Board and recommend them to
the Board for adoption.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year under review, the Board met the requirement of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one third of the Board and at least
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term of one year. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

Re-election of members of the Board

Each of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”). According to Bye-Law
99, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, Mr. Yuen Chi King, Wyman, Mr. Che Wai
Hang, Allen and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, to offer themselves for re-
election.

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen and Mr. Lee Yiu Pun have served as independent
non-executive Directors for more than nine years. The Nomination Committee
has assessed and reviewed the annual confirmation of independence based
on the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and affirmed that Mr.
Che and Mr. Lee remain independent as having regard that they have not
taken part in the day-to-day management or performed any management
role or executive function in the Company or any of its subsidiaries. The
Board concurs with the view of the Nomination Committee that the long
service of Mr. Che and Mr. Lee remain independent of management and free
of any relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgment. Furthermore, given their professional knowledge or
accounting expertise, experience and pervious contributions to the Company,
the Board believes that their re-election is in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

Brief biographical details of the Directors who will be proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting are set out on pages 14
to 17.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Insurance

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover for the Directors in
respect of legal actions taken against the Directors. The Board reviews the
extent of the insurance cover every year.

Board and committee attendance

Each year, regular matters reserved for the Board include overall strategies of
the Group, annual budgets, financial statements, dividend policy, corporate
governance function and other major corporate activities. For such purposes,
regular Board meetings are held four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled in advance.
Notices of not less than 14 days are given of all regular board meetings to
give all directors an opportunity to attend. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are circulated with sufficient time to allow the Directors to
prepare before meetings.

According to the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general meetings. In the 2017 annual
general meeting, all Directors, including the Chairman of the Board and
the external auditor of the Company attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.

During the year, the Board held five meetings mainly to review and approve
the revised director’s service contract of the executive Directors; to discuss
and approve the overall strategies of the Group; to review and monitor the
financial performance of the Group; to consider and approve the annual
budgets, the financial reports and corporate governance related policies of
the Group. The chairman of the Board also met with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors.
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The Board of Directors (Continued)

Board and committee attendance (Continued)

Details of the attendance of each of the Directors at board meetings,
committee meetings and annual general meeting held for the year ended 31
March 2018 are set out in the table below:
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No. of meetings attended/held

HEBITEBRRY
2017 annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination general

Name of Director Board  Committee Committee  Committee meeting

2017 RER
BEEnR Exge ERKZEET FHERE REZEET BFERE
Executive Directors HITES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 15 5/5 - 22 11 11
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R T 48 5/5 - - - 171
Chow Man Yan, Michael A= 5/5 - - - 17
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TR AR 5/5 - - - 171
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben 5 5/5 - - - 11
Chow Lai Fung EREE 5/5 - - - m
Independent non-executive  BIFEHITES

Directors

Chung Chi Ping, Roy §EET 5/5 3/3 2/2 m m
Che Wai Hang, Allen BHEE 5/5 3/3 22 171 171
Lee Yiu Pun B} 5/5 3/3 2/2 n 0
Directors’ training EEEI

To assist the Directors to participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, all Directors had attended
relevant seminars and courses. The costs for such training are borne by the
Company.

Directors attended seminars/conferences/forums relevant to his/her
professional duties as directors or self-study of the publications issued by the
regulators, professional bodies and corporate lawyers during the year ended
31 March 2018.

Directors have participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and have provided a record of
training they received during the year ended 31 March 2018 to the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, the chairman of the Company, is also the chief
executive officer of the Company. According to the Code Provision A.2.1, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. In view of that Mr. Yeung has extensive
experience in the electronics and acoustics industry and is responsible for the
overall strategic planning and business development of the Group, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer
in Mr. Yeung provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
to improve the Company's efficiency in decision-making and execution,
and effectively capture business opportunities. However, the Board will
periodically review the effectiveness of this arrangement and consider to
separate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer when it thinks
appropriate.

The responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer are as
follows:

The chairman is responsible to determine the overall strategic planning
and business development of the Group after consultation with the Board,
provide leadership for the Board on corporate and strategic planning, ensure
proper proceedings of the Board and encourage all Directors to have active
contribution to the Board's affairs. With the support from the Board’s
members, he manages to implement the major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board.

The chief executive officer, with support of the executive Directors, is
to manage and operate the Group's day-to-day business, including the
implementation of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

Board Committees

The Board has three committees, namely, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. All the Board committees
are empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference which have
been posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-executive Directors, as
follows:

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen
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Board Committees (cContinued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Board has adopted written terms of reference that set forth the authority
and duties of the committee. The Audit Committee provides an important
link between the Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within
the scope of the group audit. Its duties are mainly to review the Company’s
financial reports, make recommendations on the appointment, removal
and remuneration of independent auditor, approve audit and audit-related
services, supervise the Company’s internal financial reporting procedures
and management policies, and review the Company's risk management and
internal control systems as well as the internal audit function. During the
year, the Audit Committee held three meetings and conducted the following
activities:

(1) to review the results announcements, financial statements, interim and
annual reports of the Company, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval;

(2)  to review the risk management policy, risk register and internal audit
year plan of the Group;

(3) to review effectiveness of internal controls and risk mitigation measures
of top 10 risks prioritised in the risk register;

(4) to review the internal control, risk management and financial matters
of the Group in pursuance of the terms of reference; and

(5) to make recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of the
auditor of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen (Chairman)
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are clearly defined in its terms of
reference which have been prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.
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Board Committees (cContinued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the review and
determination of the remuneration policies and packages for Directors
and senior management of the Company. The remuneration packages of
the executive Directors are stipulated in their service agreements with
the Company. Such packages, including basic salaries, director’s fee
and discretionary bonus, are determined by reference to their duties,
responsibilities and experience, prevailing market conditions and their
expected time spent and contributions on the affairs of the Company. The
emoluments of the independent non-executive Directors are determined with
regard to their estimated time spent on the affairs of the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings and
conducted the following activities:

—  to review and approve the revised director’s service contract of the
executive Directors;

—  to review and approve the remuneration packages of the executive
Directors;

—  to review and approve the remuneration packages of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

— to review and approve the remuneration packages of senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Director
Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny (Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Chung Chi Ping, Roy

Mr. Che Wai Hang, Allen

Mr. Lee Yiu Pun
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Board Committees (cContinued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

According to the terms of reference, the Nomination Committee is
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board
at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and select
or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors taking into account the independence requirements
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; to make recommendations to the
Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for the Directors, in particular the
chairman and the chief executive, including but not limited to, the policy
concerning the diversity of Board members, and the measurable objectives
for implementing such policy.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held a meeting and conducted
the following activities:

—  to review of the structure, size and composition of the Board;
—  to review the Board Diversity Policy and its measurable objective;

—  to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and review the Independent non-executive Directors’ annual
confirmations on their independence; and

—  to consider and make recommendation to the Board on the re-election
of Directors for re-election by shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Company secretary

Ms. Chow Lai Fung is the company secretary of the Company and she
is also an executive Director. The company secretary is responsible for
facilitating the Board meeting process, as well as communication among
Board members, with shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and
management. During the year, company secretary has confirmed that she has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Directors and senior management’s remuneration

The remuneration of senior management of the Company for the year under
review is set out below:

EEREREEEMNS
REBFE  AAABRELEZHMERFIMT -

it

Number of individuals

Band of remuneration B < &8 AE
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 721,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000%8 7T 2

Further particular regarding the five highest paid employees and directors
remuneration are set out in Notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company,
provided both audit and non-audit services to the Company for a total
remuneration of approximately HK$2,396,000. The relevant fee paid for
audit services amounted to approximately HK$1,626,000. The balance of the
remuneration related to the non-audit services which mainly included the
review of interim results, amounting to approximately HK$210,000; taxation
services, amounting to approximately HK$269,000; and other non-audit
services, amounting to approximately HK$291,000.

Disclosure obligations regarding inside information

In light of the disclosure obligations under the SFO with effect from 1

January 2013, the Board has established the following processes and

procedures across all relevant division(s) and department(s) of the Group for

complying with the disclosure obligations regarding “Inside Information”:

(i)  the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating potential inside
information to the Board; and

(ii)  the responsibilities of officers in preserving the confidentiality of inside
information, escalating upwards any such potential information and
cascading down the message and responsibilities to relevant staff.
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Securities transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors and senior management of the Group on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all Directors and senior management
of the Group have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by Directors and senior management throughout the year ended 31 March
2018.

The Board has also establish procedures for relevant employees, including
certain employees of the Company, certain Directors or employees of its
subsidiaries who are considered to be likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Company or its securities (the “Relevant Employees”), in
respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.

Risk management and internal control

The Board is responsible for overseeing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Company, to
identify and manage the risks faced by the Group, as well as to ensure the
shareholders’ interests and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The design of risk management and internal control systems is to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Company has adopted a risk management policy to comply with: the
requirement in the Listing Rules in relation to the code provisions on risk
management. The Board has delegated the Audit Committee with authority
and responsibility to oversee the overall management of risks and report
the results to the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit committee has
included risk management into its scope of duties.

The Board conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company. The Company
compiles a risk register according to the risk assessment conducted at the
enterprise level, monitors it on an on-going basis by taking into account
emerging issues.
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Risk management and internal control (Continued)

During the year, the Board has conducted a continuous review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
through the Audit Committee and internal audit team of the Company. The
review included:

- the scope of the risk management and internal control systems covering
strategic, operational, financial and compliance controls.

—  the risk management process, including risk assessment process, risk
prioritisation, and the design of internal controls and risk mitigation
measures of the risks prioritised in the risk register.

- mid-year review on the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
mitigation measures of top 10 risks prioritised in the risk register.

the annual internal audit plan and the regular internal audit updates.

The internal audit team plays an important role to ensure the risk
management and internal control systems are operating effectively. It
independently reviews compliance of the Group's policy and workflows,
regulatory requirements, risk management and internal controls and evaluate
their adequacy and effectiveness. The internal audit plan is risk-and-control-
based that covers the Group’s significant operations over a cycle and
recurring basis. The annual audit plan is reviewed and endorsed by the Audit
Committee.

The Board’s review also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget. There were no
significant areas of concern identified during the year.

The procedures and internal controls for handling and disseminating of inside
information are governed by the Model Code. The policy and procedures
of the Company are explained in the sections of “Disclosure obligations
regarding inside information” and “Securities transactions” of this Corporate
Governance Report.

In light of the above reviews and policies, the Board confirms that the
Group’s risk management and internal controls systems are effective and
adequate.
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Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of financial
statements of the Group.

The responsibilities of the independent auditor of the Company are set out

in the Independent Auditor's Report to the shareholders of the Company on
pages 68 to 74 of this annual report.

Shareholders’ right

1. Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition

1.1

Shareholders have the right to requisition the Company to
convene a special general meeting in the manner prescribed by
and set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act.

Bye-Law 62 provides “The Board may, whenever it thinks
fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by
the Companies Act, and, in default, may be convened by the
requisitionists.”Pursuant to section 74 of the Companies Act,
Shareholders (“General Meeting Requisitionists”) holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
may requisition the Directors to forthwith proceed duly to convene
a special general meeting by depositing a written requisition
("General Meeting Requisition”) at the registered office of the
Company.

The General Meeting Requisition must state the purpose of
the meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at
the meeting), and must be signed by the General Meeting
Requisitionists; the General Meeting Requisition may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
General Meeting Requisitionists.
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Shareholders’ right (continued)

1.

42

Procedures for convening special general meeting on
requisition (Continued)

1.4 The General Meeting Requisition shall be deposited at the

1.5

1.6

registered office and preferably, copied to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company and marked for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of the Company
at their respective address below:

Registered office of the Company

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Head office and principal place of business of the Company
16th Floor, Tower 1

Grand Central Plaza

138 Shatin Rural Committee Road

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Attention: Board of Directors/Company Secretary

If the Directors fails to proceed to duly convene such meeting
within 21 days from the date of the deposit of General Meeting
Requisition as set out in the paragraph 1.2 above, the General
Meeting Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one half of their total voting rights, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of the deposit of
the General Meeting Requisition. A meeting so convened by the
General Meeting Requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the General Meeting
Requisitionists by reason of the failure of the Board to duly
convene a meeting shall be repaid to the General Meeting
Requisitionists by the Company.
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Shareholders’ right (continued)

2. Procedures for raising enquiries

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, registration and payment of
dividend to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
details of which are as follows:

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Address: 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2529 6087

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in respect of the
Company at the following designated contacts, correspondence
addresses, email addresses and enquiry hotlines of the Company:

Address: 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza,
138 Shatin Rural Committee Road, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: cosec@fujikon.com ir@fujikon.com
(Company Secretary)  (Investor Relations)

Tel: (852) 2605 5008 (852) 2688 8287

Fax: (852) 2694 1338 (852) 2694 1338

Shareholders are encouraged to make enquires via the
online enquiry form available on the Company’s website at
www.fujikon.com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions together with
their detailed contact information for the prompt response from
the Company if it deems appropriate.
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Shareholders’ right (continued)

3.

44

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

3.1

3.2

3.3

Section 79 of the Companies Act provides that, at the expense of
the Resolution Requisitionists (as defined in paragraph 3.2 below)
unless the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of
the Company on the requisition in writing by the Resolution
Requisitionists:

(a) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that
meeting;

(b) to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of
any general meeting sent to them any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

"Resolution Requisitionists” means Shareholders making a
requisition under paragraph 3.1 above and shall constitute either:

(@) any number of Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates; or

(b) not less than one hundred Shareholders.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any
such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to
have notice of the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such Shareholder in any manner
permitted for service of notice of the meeting, and notice of any
such resolution shall be given to any other Shareholder by giving
notice of the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of
the resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same
manner and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of
the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to be served
or given at that time, it shall be served or given as soon as
practicable thereafter.
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Shareholders’ right (continued)

3. Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting (Continued)

3.4 Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to be
met before the Company is bound to give any notice of resolution
or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to section 80 of the
Companies Act, the Company shall not be bound to give notice
of any resolution or to circulate any statement as mentioned in
paragraph 3.1 above unless:—

(@) a copy of the requisition signed by the Resolution
Requisitionists, or two or more copies which between them
contain the signatures of all the Resolution Requisitionists,
is deposited at the registered office of the Company:—

(i) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting;
and

(ii) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one
week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expense in
giving effect to the procedures in paragraph 3.1 above
(i.e. the giving of notice of resolution and/or circulation of
statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring notice
of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office of
the Company, an annual general meeting is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy though
not deposited within the above-mentioned time shall be deemed
to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

4. Procedures for propose a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to Bye-law 103, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director at any general meeting appointed for
such election shall follow the procedures as prescribed in Bye-law 103.
Details of the procedures for nomination of Directors for election are
available on the websites of the Company.

The relevant procedures are set out in the document titled “Shareholders’
rights” and “Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a director” which are available on the websites of the Company.
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Relations with shareholders

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
The Company also holds regular meetings with institutional shareholders.

To ensure effective communication with the Shareholders, the Company
has adopted a formal shareholder communication policy to ensure that the
Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced
and understandable information about the Company (including its financial
performance, strategic goals and plans, material developments, governance
and risk profile), in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights
in an informed manner, and to allow the Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company.

The Company maintain a corporate website (www.fujikon.com) to keep its
Shareholders and the investing public posted of the Company’s business
developments and operations, list of Directors and their roles and functions,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board and its committees,
procedures of nomination of directors for election, shareholders’ rights and
communication policy, corporate governance practices, announcements,
circulars and reports released to the Stock Exchange and other information
are posted. Information on the Company’s website will be updated from time
to time.

The Company’s annual general meeting is one of the important platforms
to communication with the Shareholders. The Annual General Meeting
will be held at 16th Floor, Tower 1, Grand Central Plaza, 138 Shatin Rural
Committee Road, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong on 9 August 2018. The
full text of the resolutions and explanatory notes in respect of the meeting
are contained in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. All Shareholders
are invited to attend the Annual General Meeting and participate in
communicating with the Company.

Hong Kong Market Misconduct Tribunal proceedings

Reference is made to the announcement dated 10 April 2018.

The Securities and Futures Commission has commenced proceedings in the
Market Misconduct Tribunal ("MMT") against the Company, Mr. Yeung Chi
Hung, Johnny and Ms. Chow Lai Fung to determine whether there was a
breach of disclosure requirement of inside information.

The Company, Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny and Ms. Chow Lai Fung are
seeking legal advice on their respective position in relation to the MMT

proceedings.

Hong Kong, 20 June 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Our vision

Fujikon is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other
electronic products. The Group has been focusing on technology
innovation to solidify its position in the electro-acoustic market. We
also place great emphasis on the sustainable development of the Group
while we strive to expand our business. We have committed to reducing
impacts on the environment from our business operations, safeguarding
employee rights and interests and increasing support to the community
to promote community development. The management team pursues
improvement in areas such as environmental protection, employment,
operation and community development, so as to lay a solid foundation
for the development of the Group.

We will continue to incorporate sustainability concepts into our
development strategy, and strive a balance among business
development, environmental protection and social responsibility, with
an aim to create sustainable value for the stakeholders of the Group.

About this section

The Group is committed to achieving sustainable development by
engaging environmental protection and social development as an
integral part of our business development. This section presents
the environmental and social performance of the Group. This report
is prepared in accordance with the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) to conform
with the relevant disclosure requirements for listed companies issued
by the Stock Exchange. This section highlights the environmental
performance of Charter Media (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. under the Group
which is located in Dongguan, China (hereinafter referred to as the
“Headsets and Headphones Plant”), as well as the other social and
governance performance of its Hong Kong office and the plants, and
identifies opportunity for improvement, with an aim to achieve its long-
term goals of sustainable development.

This section reports our performance in areas such as environmental
protection, employee caring, operation governance and community
development during the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HEBRERAHRS

3. Stakeholder engagement and material issues 3. FMBEMEBAAINSEREEMRE
3.1 Stakeholder engagement 3.1 FBzEELFSH

We attach great importance to the opinions of the stakeholders EREERNRARN - BMTTOEBRMZEE
while we expand group business. The key stakeholders in our BANER - EBHPEEN M@ 2
business include customers, employees, investors, governments BE BT REE BUNTREE#E - (#
and regulators, suppliers, community partners and industry fER - HEBHARITERS - HMAEREHE
associations. We believe that good communication with the F 25 +8RE 77 B B AP /B @ nl B & BHIE T 4%
stakeholders is helpful for the Group in formulating its sustainable BERAE  HEBARENEBEZEAEX
development goals, and will greatly benefit the future business A o

development of the Group.

3.2 Materiality analysis 3.2 EEMAW
To ensure that this report covers material environmental, social AERARERERNER ETEBEKIRE «
and governance (“ESG") issues in the Group's core business and eRERIERE HEeRERITENE
presents appropriate response to concerns of the stakeholders, we DA WE o ERNEE Fﬁﬁﬁ’]?ﬁ,{
gather the views of stakeholders of our headsets and headphones FE BMEXE2EAMENRE  UTHE
business mainly through conducting questionnaires, which require E#EBNTZAEE S Eu F‘E]ﬁ;zjjiy\ﬁ
the interviewed stakeholders to prioritise the environmental A BB T RER M EEERI(KTE
and social issues with a rating of 0 (least important) to 5 (most 2)B(ZEE)FH - M= HEﬁEE’] =R
important). The opinions of the stakeholders will help us to DR BT ELEEEREEZNIRIE -
identify and prioritise the relative material ESG-related issues, HERER T ENMERER  UHhHEEE
which will enable us to identify the risks associated with our main DEBERRERR - I H)E AR BER RN
businesses and to develop policies and measures to cope with the JE ST PRE -
challenges.
The table below summarises the material ESG issues identified TREBTROBBETHMENERE 48
through the above communication activity: REREZZES -

Selected material issues

BENNEEMRE
Employment and labour practices Operation practices
BEREIESR &EER
° Labour standard — prohibition of child labour or forced e  Anti-corruption
labour REBE
BTEA—PIEETsaH 45T e Intellectual property rights
e Safety and health A ERE
fegeal Yz e Product quality verification and recall mechanism
e Employment relationship EmE E0E & BB
EIERAER e Product inquiry mechanism, post-sale services and
e Employee training and development feedback mechanism
BTRIIRER EmEANES - SRR N E R R R
° Customer privacy
ESSNE
e Supply chain management
HrEEE R

48 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018
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4.

Stakeholder engagement and material issues
(Continued)

3.2 Materiality analysis (Continued)

Selected material issues

BRMNWEENERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HERERKE

3. MNEMBINSEREEMEE(

3.2 EEMAW(E)

Environment

RBE

° Compliance with environmental protection regulations
BTRIRREER

. Emissions
213,67

° Greenhouse gas emission
BE RS

o Hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
BELEBEEEY

° Measures and achievements in emission mitigation
BRBEE R FTERR

e Energy and water utilisation and efficiency
BEIR R K 9 (50 ARl B

e Minimising impacts on the environment from business
operations
BB BRI ER TR

Environmental, social and governance structure

In order to effectively manage ESG-related risks, we have established
the Environmental, Social and Governance Working Group, which is
responsible for coordinating all departments to implement the relevant
measures and collect relevant data as well as carrying out the report
compilation. While the Board is responsible for the overall ESG strategy
and approval of the report.

Community

#HE

° Community investment
R A

4. RIBE-HEBREREE
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5.

50
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Environmental protection

5.1 Environmental management system

Environmental protection is essential to sustainable development.
In conducting our business, we strive to mitigate the damages
and risks to the environment caused by day-to-day operations,
and implement emission reduction and energy conservation in
the production process of the headsets and headphones business.
Meanwhile, efforts have been made to enhance the awareness
of our employees and clients regarding environmental protection
and energy conservation. We have set up an environmental
management system to meet the national environmental
protection laws and regulations and achieve continuous success
in emission reduction.

Our efforts in environmental protection have also been recognized
by the society. The Headsets and Headphones Plant of the Group
has obtained the 1SO14001 Environmental Management System
Certification and the IECQ QC080000 HSPM Hazardous Substances
Process Management System Certification, which demonstrate
the achievements and continuous improvements of the Group in
environmental protection.

5.

RERIE
5.1 BEEHEER

DEPARHELE RERESTAHRY
—R o HEBF  BABIREBBEEEY
REMNGEMRR - WIEF#EBNEER
PR EREERE  ANRESEIRERY
IRIBRENMENEIRNER « RMELTIR
EEIRER  UHERRIBEER  EBE
%EMT?F

BMERBRENTIENESHLEHRE -
SEGE N F A E RS B EUSI1S014001 38
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Environmental protection (Continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes

The Group is primarily engaged in the production of headsets and
headphones. In compliance with the environmental protection
laws and regulations in Mainland China, and following the
principle of up-to-standard emission and minimising impacts of
pollutants on the environment and the surrounding areas, we
are dedicated to reducing discharge of pollutants and wastes
generated from business operations by the means of green
purchasing and cleaner production. In compliance with the
requirements of the “Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition®
Code of Conduct”, the Headsets and Headphones Plant has
established a comprehensive management system, formulated
guidelines on reducing all kinds of emissions and actively
introduced emission abatement technology and equipment. During
the year, we engaged an independent environmental inspection
company to examine the waste gas and waste water discharged
by the Headsets and Headphones Plant, with the result showing
that the emissions satisfied the national and local emission
standards.

Waste gas

The waste gas emissions from the Headsets and Headphones
Plant mainly include volatile organic compounds (“VOCs") from
painting operation, tin and its compounds from assembling
operation and exhaust gas of power generators. The VOCs from
painting operation are treated by the organic exhaust purification
system. The concentration of waste gas emission is far below the
national and local standards.

BESRBE R
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5.2 BFHREEY
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HREBHEEERRETMMMERETE
BREEMEREENEF AR ([ERHN
BHY])  REEREENHREELAY
URBEERER - BMERELNERLS
BYRARFERRERE  BRIFFREER
ERBIR KR 77 PRI IR R E -

Annual emission
Waste gas emissions concentration in 2017/18 Unit

Tin and its compounds
BRELED
Particles

SERLY)

Sulfur dioxide

= i

Nitrogen oxide

REAY

Note' ND denotes “not detected”, i.e. no relevant emission is detected

20171185 &
BrRE By
0.0556 mg/m?3
EL VOV
1.9 mg/m?
25,/ MK
ND! mg/m?3
25,/ MK
44 mg/m?3
25,/ MK
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5.

Environmental protection (Continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Waste water

The industrial waste water generated by the Headsets and
Headphones Plant is mainly discharged from painting operation. In
order to reduce industrial waste water discharge from the source,
the Headsets and Headphones Plant has introduced a circulating
water treatment system to improve the waste water filtration
process. In addition, we have formulated relevant procedures to
ensure that industrial waste water is separately collected and
pretreated by a dedicated sedimentation basin before transferring
it to the institutions recognised by the environmental protection
authority for recycling and treatment. Moreover, we conduct
regular examinations on domestic waste water from the Headsets
and Headphones Plant and the dormitory buildings to ensure all
water quality indicators meet the national standards.

Industrial waste water

TEEK

B W @) L=

5. RERRE#®)
5.2 M REEY (&)

35k
BB A 10 T 255K = Bk @ 1
YE% - ATHOBRERIE TE5KES B
¥ BHMED I ABERKES - HESKBE
B - R KD ST HEBRF - BRIET
S KEBINE - REPIRRL TR
2 B4 IR R EPPY SR AT M e B Mk
o BHh - RMITHRBEREBRERE
S AR SK - ARR R K E 151
HERARIEE -

Annual discharge

Generation of industrial waste water?

TEKER?

Generation or discharge of industrial waste water/thousand
units produced

T¥SKEESHRE BTEENE

Note? Industrial waste water represents waste water from painting operation.
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5. Environmental protection (Continued) 5. RERE &
5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued) 5.2 BEREEEN (&)
Waste water (Continued) Bk ()
The discharge of industrial waste water during the year recorded REEITESKE FFEHEBEERAER
a significant decrease as compared with that of last year, which L FRRER2017FIA —ESKEER
was mainly because a set of waste water treatment equipment BIRAGER - MBKBIRB D T 5K
was put into use in September 2017, which helped to reduce e
the discharge of industrial waste water by implementing water
recycle.
Waste water treatment equipment SSKEERE
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5. Environmental protection (Continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Greenhouse gas

We have been taking proactive measures to reduce greenhouse
gas emissions. The overall greenhouse gas emissions are
decreased by approximately 4.7% as compared with the last
year. We will continue to strive to alleviate the impacts on the
environment from our business operations.

Greenhouse gas

BERE

5. RERRE#®)

5.2

PR R ()

a =R

B —ERERER - BERREREREOH
Mo AFRAERBNERIMEREFR

DUIAT% ° %Fﬁ”sﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂmﬁ_ﬁ%ﬁ‘%xﬁa
EER AR

Annual emission in

Direct Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions (Scope 1)3

REREEEBR(EEE)?

Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2)*
RE R SR (Fs2)

Total GHG Emissions
BE R R AT

Intensity
BnE

Emission of CO,/thousand units produced

—RILHRBERE BT EEMK

Note® Direct GHG Emissions are attributable to petroleum and diesel consumed by
commercial vehicles, gas by kitchens and refrigerants for air-conditioning
systems.

Note* Indirect GHG Emissions are attributable to electricity bought from external
parties.
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214.99 tCOse
A = &1 EEJIEFBSZ
EE E
8,923.99 tCOse
W — &/ I:Eﬁ%;‘kﬁﬁl
9,138.98 tCOse
WA — AAERRTEIR
=

1.83 Ton/thousand
units produced
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5.

Environmental protection (Continued)

5.2 Emissions and wastes (Continued)

Wastes

We have waste treatment procedures in place. In terms of
hazardous wastes, we safely transfer the hazardous substances
like waste paint residue and used oil in accordance with the
“Management Regulation on Hazardous Wastes Manifests”, and
hand them over to the collection service providers approved
by the environmental protection authority for recycling and
treatment. For non-hazardous wastes, recyclable and non-
recyclable wastes are sorted out and stored separately, of which
most of the non-hazardous wastes can be recycled, so as to
reduce negative impacts on the environment.

The major discharge of industrial wastes by the Headsets and
Headphones Plant are shown below:

Wastes

REZY)
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5. RERRE#)
5.2 M REEY (&)

BEEY

BHEHEARRERRMNERF - BZRE
BomE - BPREEREDEEHEER
WERIR2EBERRE BRHEAZY
B URHREESPIMENCKEERE - &
REEEMTE - RAOSIEAERERET
A E R EE R D BRI - B AR B E R
TR EIRER - BRE R EK

./,
=in-2-

TRIMEREBHENSREI B TERER

Hazardous wastes®
B ERERS
Non-hazardous wastes®

MEVEERE

Annual discharge
2017/18
20171185 &
B E

15 Ton

7]

609 Ton

A

Intensity
®nE

Hazardous wastes discharged/thousand
units produced

BEBEHERE BTEENE

Non-hazardous wastes discharged/thousand units produced

BEEENINEBTEEMK

Note® Hazardous wastes include used oil barrels, oil wiping gloves, waste light tubes,

Note® Including used cardboard boxes, used plastic tips (plastics) and other non-

used ink slag, waste paint residue and used oil etc.

hazardous wastes, etc.

Ton/thousand
0.003 units produced
W, BT EEMFH

0.122 Ton/thousand units
produced

Wi, BT AEEME

BT EEEMEEROR ARTTE  BEE BHE
B BRRE - BERRE -
FaEs BB - FERTA(ER) AR EMEEEMNE
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5.
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Environmental protection (Continued)

5.3 Energy Conservation

The Group proactively works in line with national environmental
policies. We also have taken a series of measures in the
Headsets and Headphones Plant to reduce energy consumption,
including using air-conditioners and lightings as less often as
possible, reducing the idle time of production machines and
adopting high-efficiency production machinery, etc. We plan to
further extend the use of light-emiting diode (“LED") lightening
system to the warehouse and living quarters for employees and
deploy automatic on/off switch management for the lighting
and drinking-water systems to further reduce the electricity
consumption in the next year. In addition, the newly purchased
surface-mount technology (“SMT") equipment has been put into
operation during the year, which not only helped to increase
output but also reduced electricity consumption by approximately
55% as compared with the old equipment.

SMT equipment

5.
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5. Environmental protection (Continued)

5.3

5.4

Energy Conservation (Continued)

The energy and water consumption by the Headsets and
Headphones Plant are as follows:

Use of resources
EIRERA
Use of resources
HE R £

Electricity

RAEE

Diesel

A

Liquified petroleum gas

RBEARRE
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5. RERRE#)
5.3 HiRE(#&)
T3R5 E M 2 S R AR R AR LA R A K

2 -

Annual consumption in

2017/18
201718 EREAE
14,156,080 kWh
TR
5,570 Litre
7t
22,355 Kilogram
Df

Water consumption
Ak

Water
RAKkE

180,670 m?
MK

Intensity
BnE

Electricity consumption/thousand units produced
REEEHE STEENK
Water consumption/thousand units produced

FKEERE BTEEMHEH

Water used by the Headsets and Headphones Plant is sourced
locally and there is no water sourcing issue.

Treasure our environment and resources

Over the years we actively enhanced environmental benefits in
the production process, achieving significant outcomes. Although
the packaging design and materials selection for our headsets
and headphones business is prescribed by the customers, the
packaging of materials and other resulting by-products are sorted
out for recycling and reuse as much as possible, so as to reduce
the consumption of social resources.

2,840.7 kWh/thousand units
produced

TR,

BTAENGH

36.3 m3/thousand units
produced

SRk

BTAENHH

HEMEBBENA/KENA B - WEBIR
KEREEMRIFRE

54 ERERER
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FEIZET
6.1 ZNTENITHERE

6. Employee caring 6.

6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace

58

Employees have always been the important assets of the Group.
A diversified and equitable workplace not only helps to enhance
employee performance, but also reinforces the mutual trust
between the Company and the employees, which are crucial to
the sustainable development of the Company. Furthermore, the
Group has established an equal, respectful and non-discriminate
recruitment policy, offers a sound remuneration mechanism,
sets up smooth communication channels and organises various
employee activities, so as to promote cohesion among employees,
create a good working environment and build a quality workplace
for the employees. The Group has received the “Happy Company”
label from the Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong
Kong Productivity Council for five consecutive years since 2014
to commend the efforts made by the Group in building a happy
workplace.

—ENRETIHESEEREE  BBEY
ZULVPETHERE TEFHRFTEIR
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6. Employee caring (Continued)
6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued)

We believe a diversified workforce is essential for our business
development. In respect of recruitment and promotion, we adopt
an approach of merits and ensure a fair and equitable process
without any discrimination. As of 31 March 2018, the Group had
a total of 4,121 full-time employees. Below is a breakdown of our
workforce by age, gender, position and education:

189

By age

BRETFiRESD

4 69, Below 20 A4 89, 35~ below 50
205% AT 35-50B% A T
A7 1% 20-below 35 3.59, 50 or above
20-35BRA T 50mR kLA

By position

RETHASS

7 A9, Managers or above

KRR
21.6% Supervisory staff

BERE
76.0%  General staff

—REE
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6. BIEET (®)
6.1 SAEEWMIHEBEE)

BPREZTEREEEEBERIETE
T o MBRBMRE L BMBEESZR - MU
NERERDER AR ARE - 1201843
AR FEHEHRNBEHET &
Fie - MR BAKEEESOT

2,627

By gender
BRETHRES

36.3% Male
5

63.7Y% Female
z

129

By education

RETER
EEES

2 .7 %, Primary school 5.49/ College

e A%
28 .89, Middle school 319 University or above
hE RE A E
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Employee caring (Continued)

6.1 Diversified and equitable workplace (Continued)

We strictly comply with the national labour laws and regulations
as well as employment policies, thus minors under the age of
16 will not be employed and organisations with child labour or
forced labour will be rejected from our business dealings. The
human resources department always carefully verifies the identity
information of each applicant during the recruitment process to
guarantee that the information provided is consistent with those
shown on the supporting certificate.

Moreover, we spare no efforts to ensure that all employees
enjoy equal opportunities in terms of recruitment, employment,
remuneration, promotion and work allocation regardless of
their race, color, age, religion, nationality or disability etc.
Through relentless enforcement of the policy on prohibition of
discrimination and harassment, we prohibit bullying, bulldozing,
belittling or sexually harassing among the employees, and strictly
restrain the Group from forcing employees to work by way of
violence or other means of illegal restriction of personal freedom.

In order to retain talents, the Group has established a competitive
remuneration and benefit system based on various factors such
as market pay trend, position and skill requirements. Moreover,
the Group has established a performance appraisal system and
a promotion mechanism on the principle of equity and fairness,
defined the responsibilities and performance indicators of
each position, and reviews and determines the remuneration
and promotion arrangement of such employee after regular
performance appraisal.

We also hold employee activities on a regular basis such as
monthly birthday parties, Christmas party, Annual Dinner, Chinese
New Year festive party and various sports events, so as to
enhance team cohesion and create a harmonious atmosphere.

We attach great emphasis to communication with employees
and encourage employees to give feedback and opinions through
various channels. Apart from directly reporting to their superiors,
employees may give suggestions and make enquiries through
hotlines and mailboxes set up in the workplace. For employees
leaving the company, we also arrange exit interview with them
to understand the reasons for their resignation, so as to improve
the Group's existing employee management system and policies,
with an aim to create a better working environment for the
employees. During the reporting period, the average turnover rate
of the Group was 7.6%, representing an improvement of 0.4% as
compared with that of last year.
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6. Employee caring (Continued) 6. BIEETI (&

6.2 Health and safety 6.2 BREREZ:

The Group treats the health and safety of its employees very
seriously. In accordance with the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the national occupational-health
standards and requirements of China, we have formulated safety
regulations and rules, in an effort to create a healthy and safe
working environment for the employees. The Company offers
orientation trainings for new employees so that they have safety
knowledge related to their posts. Furthermore, we also provide
health and safety trainings regularly, ensuring that the employees
master relevant knowledge of occupational health. In addition to
strengthening the health and safety awareness of employees, the
Company regularly carries out documented physical examinations
to safeguard the health of employees.

Regarding Hong Kong headquarters, the employees are mainly
engaged in office work. In accordance with the Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong, we arrange
examination of the display screens from time to time, organise
various health-related seminars, and announce relevant data of
occupational safety and health on notice boards. Moreover, we
organise annual physical examination for our drivers and have
formulated driver guidelines to ensure driving safety.

The implementation of such measures helps to reduce the risks
of accidents and work-related injuries. In the year of 2017/18,
we have achieved zero work-related casualty and 13 employees
were injured at work. We pledge to continue to make efforts for
improvement with the goal of achieving zero accident.

Training and development

We provide training and development opportunities for
employees, so as to enhance their capability, accommodate
our business development and provide sufficient talent reserve.
Every year, in addition to relevant training programs drew up
by the Group according to the development strategies of the
Company, each of department heads submits relevant training
application for approval by the human resources department
based on the development needs of employees, so as to enhance
knowledge and skills of our employees. Besides basic orientation
training courses, the Group also formulates future development
programs for employees based on their performance by specially
providing them with various professional trainings, including in-
house trainings and subsidized external trainings. In the year of
2017/18, training participants from the headsets and headphones
business reached 3,156 with a total of 7,407 training hours.
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EEBEEAE BEIF2NRMIIE-
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ETBRRERFE R TREEEME
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Operations governance

7.1 Supply chain management

The Group puts a high premium on supplier management. We
have formulated the “Procedures on Purchasing Control and
Supplier Management” for the headsets and headphones business
which is designed to manage the suppliers and procedures on
purchasing control, so as to ensure that the suppliers meet the
requirements concerning quality, delivery time, cost, services and
safety, etc. In strict conformity with the relevant procedures, we
carry out assessment on the new suppliers before acceptance of
such supplies to ensure they satisfy the requirements on quality
control, environmental management, green product management,
social responsibility, labour force, intellectual property rights
management, safety of goods and anti-terrorism, so as to prevent
their operations from having negative impacts on the environment
and society. In the year of 2017/18, a total of 80 suppliers were
assessed. We also assess the performance of each supplier on a
regular basis and disqualify those who are not up to the standard
for a prolonged period.

Information on suppliers of the Headsets and Headphones Plant
by region is as follows:

56 6

No. of suppliers

HERHE
409

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018

7.

13.7%

3

83.6%

1.2%
1.5%

BBER

7.1 HEEEE

SE+HEGEEEEHEE - RMMEHEE
BES T REEH REEEERRER]
EIRHIER MRERHINRR - FEEEE
WE X RA RS ZESTERL
WER - BPBERAITHBRRSF - ERAH
HEMHEZHEAEANALEEEE B
EEE  SEEREE HEEF LT
MBEEEE PRL: RESHENE
o BT IEEEENES S EHRERMS
ERBEEEE - R201T18FEE - BRFIEZ
TORMIER o AN E T HART X B P A
RY - RRBATESHEEEBEEUEE
1% o

NTAEREBRE LIRS D HRERNNIE
oo

China

[
Hong Kong
&
Taiwan

AN =1
0/=

Other regions

H A @



7.

Operations governance (Continued)

7.2

7.3

Product liabilities

The Group is committed to providing premium and safe products
with reliable and consistent quality to customers. We have
developed the “Guidelines for Monitoring of Environmental Impact
of Products and Materials” for the headsets and headphones
business, with an aim to effectively monitor if the products and
materials used in the business activities satisfy international
"Hazardous Substances Free” (HSF) requirement. Regarding new
products and equipment, we will apply for environmental tests
so as to ensure they meet various environmental protection
requirements of customers.

On the other hand, we have established the green product
management system to vigorously manage manufacturing process
and testing of every process. We have obtained 1SO 9001, 1SO/
TS16949 Quality Management System Certification and IECQ QC
080000 HSPM Hazardous Substances Process Management System
Certification, and implemented quality control systems such as
QCC and 5S, so as to ensure that the manufacturing process and
products are in compliance with the international standards. In
the year of 2017/18, no product was mandatory recalled due to
safety and health issues.

Service responsibility

The Group attaches importance to customers’ feedback and
opinions. Follow-up measures are taken and responses are given
regarding substandard products or customer complaints. In
accordance with the procedures as set out in the “Guidelines for
Handling Customer Complaints” of our headsets and headphones
business, we will get an understanding of the actual circumstance
on which the customer complains, and will handle such complaint
in a timely and efficient manner, so as to constantly improve
product quality and enhance customer satisfaction. In the year
of 2017/18, we received 2 customer complaints. We intend to
continue to improve products and service quality in the future,
and thereby reduce customer complaints.
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Operations governance (Continued)

7.3 Service responsibility (Continued)

The Group has set up stringent service responsibility to protect
customers’ data and intellectual property rights. The headsets
and headphones business has implemented various protection
measures for document information and physical samples.
Document information is stored in electronic form as much as
possible and is only accessible by staff at the relevant posts by
imposing access limit. A step-by-step examination and approval
system is implemented for transmitting of documents, while
access to and use of physical samples shall be subject to accurate
traceability mechanism. On this basis, employees are required to
sign the confidentiality agreement. The implementation of such
measures helps to prevent illegal leakage of the technology and
business information of the customers and imposes effective
and accurate supervision over the products and materials. To
this end, we have formulated various management documents
such as the "Guidelines for Protection of Intellectual Property
Rights”, “Guidelines for Integrated Management and Operation of
Samples” and “Employee Confidentiality Agreement”, which have
been strictly complied with.

7.4 Anti-corruption

The Group always places great emphasis on “integrity”, and
prohibits all bribery and corruption. Relevant requirements have
been set out in corporate policy guidelines and codes of business
ethics. New employees are required to sign the “Confidentiality
and Integrity Agreement” based on their functions, which lists
out clearly relevant anti-bribery policies of the Company.

In order to prevent bribery and corruption practice, we have
established a mechanism for declaration of interests and
diversified reporting channels, such as reporting to the human
resources department in writing or by email. The Company
also makes every effort to keep confidential of the identity of
the informant and to deal with each case in a fair and prudent
manner.

In addition to developing relevant policies, we also promote
message against bribery, blackmail and fraud through means such
as orientation, internal newsletters and notice board, so as to
instill employees with the knowledge of anti-corruption to keep
them always vigilant against such practices. We also regularly
arrange Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC")
of Hong Kong, education officials of the People’s Procuratorate
of Guangdong Province or in-house trainers of the Group to
deliver anti-corruption seminars and trainings for employees in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, so as to strengthen their anti-
corruption awareness.
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8. Community caring 8. BAEHE
The Group always bears in mind the mission of giving back to the EEAETHEREMNRR  NALOELE @ [#
society while pursuing business expansion. Commitment to public DR | CEB —BURBTHZLEBEL —
welfare is one of our core values persisted over years. We have RPERHETHEBREETCEdAeE T 88
formulated relevant policies to fulfill corporate social responsibility, B 2EANVDNRMNEBEALRSES ST A
under which at least four welfare activities will be sponsored or HEE—DH - HE2018F3A31BILFE - &
engaged in each year, making our contribution to promote community B M 2& = 18 4R BE A237,00078 7T ©
development. For the year ended 31 March 2018, total charitable
donations of the Group amounted to HK$237,000.
8.1 Career guidance for students 8.1 BEAREEN
In order to cultivate local talents and help to boost employment, REBERMAS RREMRE  SEE TR
the Group pays irregular visits to local universities and colleges, A ARHERR - ERRBUREITRES
communities and the Home Affairs Department to give career BERSKB A Z - WS E4E T B HERR
lectures and share job-seeking experiences, and also schedules F28 - EmMEEHEEREEENRHE
visits in our Headsets and Headphones Plant for students to RTE Rtz BHE@LHEKR - 2
enhance their knowledge and understanding of the Group and FREEHTELAZHES - ERAZMH
the manufacturing industry. In addition, we also offer summer TS - ARASEREBEERKS -
internship for students from universities and middle schools, RTEMBERRADRRNBELER &
so that they can gain working experience. This will present an AR ES RN T - REFREE
opportunity for the students to get an insightful view of their FHEANT o
future career, and also helps to attract quality talents for the
Group with a better understanding of the Group.
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EEHE®)
8.2 BlDH

8. Community caring (Continued) 8.

8.2 Engagement in public welfare

Our staff are always committed to public welfare and take an
active part in all kinds of charity events, including 2017 Lifeline
Express CCB (Asia) Charity Run/Walk, 2017 Yan Chai Charity
Walk, 2017 UNICEF Charity Run and other charity activities, so
as to raise fund to help those in need. In addition, the Group has
held the “Fujikon Blood Donation Day” for years in which the
employees and their relatives and friends take an active part.

In order to encourage employees to participate in community
services, the Group set up Fujikon Volunteer Team in 2016,
presenting an opportunity for the employees to serve the
community. In this year, our volunteer team participated in the
"Care@Mid-Autumn Festival 2017" organised by Yang Memorial
Methodist Social Service, paying visit to the elderly living alone
to offer them gift packages and blessing. Looking forward, we
plan to expand our volunteer team and participate in more
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community services, with an aim to make greater contribution to
the community.
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9. Our ESG awards 9. RMMESGHEIF
9.1 Employment relationship awards 9.1 EfERRREEARE
Awards Issuing agency
RIFETE EEEE
2018 Happy Company Promoting Happiness Index Foundation and Hong Kong
Productivity Council
/0 T 1EM]2018 BEREIEHE S REBEEN(RER
9.2 Society contribution awards 9.2 HEHERMMAMRE
Awards Issuing agency
RIFEE A
Caring Certificate of “Industry Cares” 2017 Federation of Hong Kong Industries
[TERE O 2017 L BEE RIS
Caring Company 2017 The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
SR RE 122017 HELSRBES
Social Capital Builder (SCB) Awards 2016-2018 Community Investment & Inclusion Fund, Labour and
Welfare Bureau
HEEARE S 4#£2016-2018 SIRBINRHRKREXAES
The 8th Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Awards — Hong Kong Productivity Council
Corporate Citizenship Logo (Enterprise Category)
FENEEBRLCEARE - PEMERZFER BEEENRER
Partner Employer Award 2017/18 The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium
Business
REBREFAT 812017118 FEPNACREAS
Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited ' l N D USTRY
ErBREZERERAT ‘ I ; a l m
eration of Hong Kong Industries Mia
Mission EEIXRECKUARERBEHN
rTHRAMBIL 2017 The 8th Hong Kong Outstanding
corng ot cemmunity, emploees o the oot Corporate Citizenship Logo
N CARING CERTIFICATE EABEARECEARBHEE
RRRLEY - lrLllB!lllll l#unxmx' ; (Enterprise Group) l
) BOMESE— 2 R4a5 o
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e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FUJIKON INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the

"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 146,
which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2018;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

22/F, Prince's Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
o Net realisable value of inventories

o Provision for impairment of trade receivables
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREITEE

FARETSHE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMHETNMEEBRETSE

Net realisable value of inventories
Refer to Notes 4 and 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2018, inventories of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$237.1 million. As
described in the accounting policies in Note 2.13 to
the consolidated financial statements, inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Management applied judgment in determining the
appropriate provision for obsolete inventories and
inventories with net realisable value below cost. Net
realisable value is determined based upon a detailed
analysis of inventories aging, with reference to the
current marketability and latest selling prices of the
relevant inventories and the current market conditions
existing at the end of the year. For the year ended 31
March 2018, provision for inventories recognised as
expense amounted to approximately HK$13.2 million.

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances
and the assumptions involved by management in
determining the net realisable value of the inventories.

FEWNERFEE
B2 MISRERME4 R -

R2018F3A31H EEENGEELEYN A
237,100,000/ 7T o ZR4R A B IS SRR M 3E2.13 2 5T
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B8R o
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13,200,000 7T, ©

RPBIUHEREENEBERNRE  UARER
BEEEFENARIFER P MORR

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net realisable value
of inventories included:

—  We understood and evaluated the key controls by which management
performed in relation to periodic review on provision for inventories, and
validated their effectiveness on a sample basis.

—  We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventories aging used by
management to estimate the appropriate provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories.

—  We performed analyses on inventories holding and movement data to
identify inventories with indication of slow moving or obsolescence.

—  We reviewed the utilisation of raw materials by production, and
completion of work-in-progress, subsequent to year end, on a sample
basis, to assess the appropriateness of the associated provision made, if
any.

—  We compared the carrying amounts of finished goods, on a sample
basis, to their net realisable values through a detailed review of sales
subsequent to the year end to check for completeness of the associated
provision. Where there are no subsequent sales of the respective finished
goods after the year end, we challenged management as to the realisable
values of the finished goods, corroborating explanations with the aging,
sales orders, historical margins and marketability of the respective
finished goods, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of management
in relation to assessment on net realisable value of inventories to be
supportable by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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FARETSEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNETNMEEBRETSE

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Refer to Notes 4 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group held gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$230.7 million with
provision for impairment of trade receivables of
approximately HK$2.4 million.

Management applied judgement in determining
the appropriate provision for impairment of trade
receivables. Provisions are determined based upon
a detailed analysis of trade receivables aging on a
customer-by-customer basis and with reference to
their credit history, settlement subsequent to the year
end, and market economics and financial condition
of the respective customers. For the year ended 31
March 2018, a reversal of provision for impairment of
approximately HK$2.1 million has been recorded in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income to
increase the carrying values of certain trade receivables
to their estimated recoverable amounts.

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances
and the assumptions involved by management in
determining the recoverable amounts of the trade
receivables.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on provision for
impairment of trade receivables included:

We understood and evaluated the key controls by which management
performed to determine the recoverable amounts of trade receivables, and
validated their effectiveness on a sample basis.

We tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade receivables
aging used by management to estimate the appropriate provision for
impairment.

We performed analyses on aging profile of trade receivables, and by
making reference to settlement received after the year end, to identify
aged receivables or potential receivables in dispute for which no provision
had been made. Where settlement had not been received subsequent to
the year end for those unprovided past due receivables, we challenged
management as to the recoverability of these receivables, corroborating
explanations with underlying documentation and correspondence with the
relevant customer.

We reviewed the circumstances of all major trade receivables provided
against with reference to their credit terms, overdue period, settlement
history, and/or amount in dispute as appropriate to determine the
reasonableness of the amount provided.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the assumptions of management
in relation to assessment on provision for impairment of trade receivables to be
supportable by available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

18 3 ¥ BB 4R &

REMBRETSEMERRAEAEN
%::'EE (#&)
ERBCEBRTERDETESHBES - BRME
RTEHEHE  RETEEEREE - BT

BRI FAET R EFF R R M E R AR A M
REEERBERRANRERE - RET RAITER
ERFARYELRER - A RERTERMNEE R
BIEE  FRBMBRNER - AREFFEA
RRSNER RE ERER ERRL - %
EBENARES 2 £ B REEBRRRFFEM
BHHEAERRANER SRR ERE
R EE A B A BRI AR o

THREZRFTABEORBES - URFTEE R
AHERF (BB MY EE ERE A EES N ER
MERRER -

SHEEEFRA S H BRI R RIEEE
AR R R A TR -

HEERAKBECLESHERNREEIELE
o RIBFMERNENRE BEELFLH
FHENBEABBNERTHEEN - KmAes
BHEEENRKELERENELEREE - 1
REMRRFEEANEEN  ABEBBRER
ZENRETIRFBEAEIEFSMBRRTH
HEARE REFHENKRETE  MHRMAEES
BRIFBEREER - RANGEREBER R EED
HE B ARG ETERE - A - RRFR
HER ARG E R E TR AELE -

AHEFAMBERRNEBEIIHRTN - EEMA
B BREEE URBAMBHRRELHTER
R ZHMEIR -

RESENERKEKEDONBIESENT
R HEENENRE  UBHGRAMBEHRERE

BER-ERMEBEESEERTHOIM - BEEM
WIT - HARBAEAAEEZHEE -

2017/2018 8 ErEBEEZERERAT 73



Independent Auditor’s Report
J8 3L % B B 5

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Mak Tze Leung, William.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& MBIk AR

As at 31 March 2018
720183 A31H

Note 2018 2017
Pt 5 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EmBEE
Property, plant and equipment LI EIN Y 6 137,898 130,381
Investment property L&Y 7 1,200 1,050
Land use rights =+ b {55 FA 8 4,316 4,047
Non-current deposits and other assets RIS R EMEE 2,758 3,713
Available-for-sale financial assets ] it Hj%ﬁﬁ‘%éF 9 3,928 4116
Deferred income tax assets ﬁk?ﬁ SHEE 17 5,836 4,786
Total non-current assets MBI EEMAE 155,936 148,093
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 1 237,111 158,697
Trade receivables e E 5K 12 228,332 214,005
Other receivables H IR 12 30,005 24,444
Other financial assets at fair value through BATFES ABZED
profit or loss Hin 5 & = 14 2,145 2,938
Current income tax recoverable E Bk ey 61 710
Cash and cash equivalents B RESEED 15 408,633 455,945
Total current assets MEEEMEE 906,287 856,739
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade payables JESE K 16 205,668 194,740
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R E A FER 16 100,078 78,931
Derivative financial instruments PTES @EIE: 13 - 3,870
Current income tax liabilities EHEHAaE 10,044 14,210
Total current liabilities BB ERE 315,790 291,751
_Netcurrentassets = #REg=REsFE 590,497 ! 564,988
Total assets less current liabilities 746,433 713,081
Non-current liabilities FEREaE
___ Deferred income tax liabilities ELEMEHEE 7o 1491 700
Net assets BEFE 744,942 712,381
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to the HBANARERB A
Company's equity holders Z IR K fE
Share capital &% A 18 42,107 42,026
Other reserves HihtEis 20 191,739 156,810
Retained earnings RE RN
— Proposed dividends —RBERE 26 21,053 29,418
— Others —Hfh 435,221 436,522
690,120 664,776
Non-controlling interests FEFE I M 54,822 47,605
Total equity BRAE 744,942 712,381

The financial statements on pages 75 to 146 were approved by the Board of
Directors on 20 June 2018 and were signed on its behalf.

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY

YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON

Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
FE BEEIE R

The notes on pages 79 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEEEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BE2018F3A3AILEFE

Note 2018 2017
k=3 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 21 1,226,121 1,155,334
Cost of sales SHE R (978,377) (968,815)
Gross profit EF 247,744 186,519
Other (losses)/gains — net Hh (EE), WS — 558 22 (15,973) 12,465
Distribution and selling expenses DI REE T H (12,903) (14,718)
General and administrative expenses —REITH X (152,557) (155,350)
Operating profit I 23 66,311 28,916
Finance income — net EE WA —FHE 24 3,278 2,193
Profit before income tax bR P15 5 B & A 69,589 31,109
Income tax expenses Fr8#isz i 25 (15,310) (6,808)
Profit for the year F Wz A 54,279 24,301
Other comprehensive income: Efh 2 mEEs
Items that have been reclassified or may be EE¥ 7 A E R E
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss: o2 Em o HE -
Currency translation differences MEHZ5 43,244 (29,254)
Fair value (losses)/gains on available-for-sale AHERKEEZ AT
financial assets B(ER), s 9 (25) 45
Release of investment reserve upon disposal of HEMHHEMKEEER
available-for-sale financial assets PR 2 I BB 20 20 822
Release of exchange reserve upon deregistration ST A RS TR R 2
of a subsidiary b 5.1 5 22 - 390
_ Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FNHRbEMEMEa - BMRBA 43239 (27,997)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKEETE 97,518 (3,696)
Profit attributable to: B
Equity holders of the Company NNGIE ST =Y =N 30,518 2,770
Non-controlling interests FEVE R RS 23,761 21,531
54,279 24,301
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 2HNEBERS
Equity holders of the Company AAEJEERA A 70,701 (23,320)
Non-controlling interests FEPE 1 R 2 26,817 19,624
97,518 (3,696)
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the FRREBARRREREA
equity holders of the Company for the year: 2w F e Z R AR -
— Basic (HK cents per share) — HAR (RSB 27 7.3 0.7
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 5 (FRRBL) 27 7.2 0.7

The notes on pages 79 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FTIE146 H 2 MM TR A M B WMER 2 B0
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEREZHR

For the year ended 31 March 2018

HZE201843 A31

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

BHILFE

BERADAREREA
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  reserves  earnings interests equity
\ JE
Bzt BRA  HitRRs RERA BE ERAG
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2016 201654818 42,019 182,890 488,322 40,231 753,462
Profit for the year EREF - - 2,770 21,531 24,301
Other comprehensive income: Hi2EKE
~ Currency translation differences -ERES 20 - (27,347) - (1,907)  (29,254)
~ Fair value gains on available-for-sale —AIREENBEELA
financial assets TEME 20 = 45 = = 45
— Release of investment reserve upon disposal of —HETH T ERKEE
available-for-sale financial assets e PTRRRR 2 1R & A1 20 - 822 - - 822
- Release of exchange reserve upon deregistration of — B A R ER
a subsidiary ZEREE 20 - 390 - - 390
Total comprehensive income for the year HZ2017F3A3BLLEE
ended 31 March 2017 2ENEHE = (26,090) 2,770 19,624 (3,696)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: HEENEREE S HE
1IN S :
Employee share option scheme: EERARETE
— Lapse of share options — BRI L 20 = (60) 60 = =
— Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise —IREBREMmETRG
of share options ZHERE 20 7 70 - - 77
Dividends paid BRRE - - (5212)  (12,250)  (37,462)
At 31 March 2017 RW2017%3H31A8 42,026 156,810 465,940 47,605 712,381
Profit for the year ER R = - 30,518 23,761 54,279
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2 E s
— Currency translation differences -BRER 20 - 40,188 - 3,056 43,244
— Fair value losses on available-for-sale —AHHERBEELA
financial assets TEEE 20 - (25) - - (25)
- Release of investment reserve upon disposal of - HEMHEENKEE
available-for-sale financial assets BTG 2 RE R 20 - 20 - - 20
Total comprehensive income for the year HZ2018F3A31B LFE
ended 31 March 2018 FENERRE - 40183 30,518 26817 97,518
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: ST EUEFAE S HE
1IN S -
Employee share option scheme: BB REATIERTE -
— Lapse of share options —BRER 20 = (6,457) 6,457 = =
— Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise — TR Em TR
of share options ZFTRHIE 20 81 804 - - 885
Appropriation of statutory reserve BEZETRE 20 - 399 (399) - -
Dividends paid ERRE = - (46,242)  (19,600)  (65,842)
At 31 March 2018 RW2018%3A31H 42,107 191,739 456,274 54,822 744,942

The notes on pages 79 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2018
BZE201853A31H ILFE

Note 2018 2017
M HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash flows from operating activities RETHESRE
Cash generated from operations REEBASZHE 30(a) 49,046 102,634
Interest paid 2AIFE (12) -
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEAEEFEH (14,516) (8,750)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BREBFBNEN 360 11
Withholding tax on dividends paid BAAR S FEE (334) -
China corporate income tax paid ERPBEBEREH (5,097) (2,710)
China corporate income tax refunded EREPEPEMEH 52 -
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBMS 2 RE TR 29,499 91,185
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHESRE
Interest received A B 3,134 2,419
Purchase of property, plant and equipment AV - WE MEE (24,341) (15,735)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BARHHENKEE = (3,890)
Purchase of other financial assets at fair value AR AT ER ABER
through profit and loss HMMBEE = (3,880)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WEKEE
equipment Fri5 I8 397 856
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HERHHENBEE
financial assets FriS I8 163 6,745
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets HEEAFEFAERRD
at fair value through profit or loss Hith B 7% & E TS /18 725 3,888
Increase in non-current deposits FEM BN R S 1L N (1,566) (128)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEEMA 2R F8E (21,488) (9.725)
Cash flows from financing activities METHESRE
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 1T {50 B8 i T B 1T AR AR 30(b) 885 77
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests in a AR SPNCIE AR X
subsidiary ZHRE 30(b) (19,600) (12,250)
Dividends paid to the Company's equity holders BERARAGIREREAZRE  30(b) (46,242) (25,212)
_Net cash used in financing activities =~ @EAZBAAZRA®FR (64.957) (37,385)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HERBELEEWORD), N
equivalents HER (56,946) 44,075
Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents I8 & NIR&EEWIE K E5E 9,634 (4,007)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FH#IR & NIBESEEY 455,945 415,877
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FXRERERRESZEY 408,633 455,945

The notes on pages 79 to 146 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

General information

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the design,
manufacture, marketing and trading of electro-acoustic products,
accessories and other electronic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") and disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment property, available-for-
sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which
are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2 FEESTHBRBE®)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1 RAUEEE)

(a) Effect of adopting amendments to standards (a) BWERZEITZHE

The following amendments to standards are mandatory for the
Group's financial year beginning 1 April 2017:

HKAS 7 (Amendments)
BB ERETRUZEIA)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)
BB ERFE125(EFTAR)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

BRPBRELER(BRTA)

The adoption of the above amendments to standards has

THER ZAEFT A A& E2017F4 A
1 B #8 2 BA R 4F 2 58 Il SR A

Disclosure initiative

REXBMT

Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

HRARERBEBRARLERAEE

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle in relation to
HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interest in other entities”

BB EER2014FZ2016F RPEME BN B ]S
ERFN2R N EMEBER 2 RE |2 FEUCE

R bR E ZEBTHARERS

no significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial MBmRITBEERTE -
statements.

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and (b) EEMERKRERZFHTERD - &
interpretations that have been issued but are AlZ 8T R2E

not effective

The following new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the
Group's financial year beginning 1 April 2017 and have not

been early adopted:

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

THFTETAER] - EBI ZEF] M2 E
RAELE017F4818 8 2 B F
EEBEM BHRESBETERT
B

Annual Report 2017/2018



Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continved) 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations that have been issued but are

not effective (Continued)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)
BBV B EAERNE15E (EFT )
HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

BB BWMEERE25 (BFTA)
HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

BRPBHRE LR FAR(BRTA)

HKFRS 9

BB SR B9

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

BB E R B (BT R)
HKFRS 15
BB E RS 155%

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

BBV B EERE155% (BFTA)

HKFRS 16
BARMBHREERF165%
HKFRS 17

BB R EERIFE1TH
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB EmEERFE105 M E BT ERIFE285%
(BETA)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

B ERTERFE285R(BFTA)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BB ERIE285 (IS5 A)

HKAS 40 (Amendments)

BB ERFAH(EFTAR)

HK (IFRIC) 22
BAE(ERNBERERBZES)RBE22%
HK (IFRIC) 23

BB (BB HHREREZE Q) 2EBE3H
HKFRSs (Amendments)
BV B EER(EFTA)

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

T

FEEHTHREME )
2.1 WEEEE)

(b) SHEMEEMRERZHTER £
Bl 2T R 2R (&)

il

First time adoption of HKFRS'

BRERAE BV RS ER

Classification and measurement of share-based payment
transaction’

AR RER 2 MR H 2 DB RGE!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
contracts'

JERBEEMBIRELRESR SR TA—SHRAE BB R
SRR FIRRIR AL

Financial instruments'

TRIA

Prepayment features with negative compensation?

BB WEZ BRI

Revenue from contracts with customers’

BERAKWRE

Clarification to HKFRS 15’

EEEBVBImEERFE155

Leases?

HE

Insurance contracts?

RERE #03

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture*

REERABENRNEENAZHEEHERIRA

Investments in associates and joint ventures’
REERFIREERRZIRE!

Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures?
REE R F REE QR R R?

Transfers of investment property’

REMEER

Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’
HINER B RIBKRFARRAE

Uncertainty over income tax treatments?
PRISItEE 1B 2 T HERE 112

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle?
BB B EER2015F E2017F BH 2 F R E?

1 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018

FR20184F1 A1 B sk, 2 & 1A 2 BT BUF E AR

2 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019

F2019F1 A1 B sl 2 1R Fh 2 TR F R A R

3 Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2021

H2021F1 A1 A2 R RM 2 R FERER
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined

18] 7R 5 E 98 Il £ 2 E HA
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations that have been issued but are
not effective (Continued)

The Group's assessment of the impact of these new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations is set out below:

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities.
The Group's debt instruments that are currently classified as
available-for-sale financial assets will satisfy the conditions
for classification as at fair value through other comprehensive
income and hence there will be no change to the accounting
for these assets. Except for that, the Group does not expect
the new guidance to affect the classification and measurement
of the financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and
have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses rather
than only incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS
39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised
cost, debt instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, contract assets under HKFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, lease receivables,
loan commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts.
Based on the assessments undertaken to date, the Group
does not expect significant increase or decrease in the loss
allowance for trade debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected
to change the nature and extent of the Group's disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the year of the
adoption of the new standard.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

g

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continve) 2 FEETTBERME#)
2.1 MAREE(E)
(b) EEMERKRERZFHTED - £

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations that have been issued but are
not effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules
retrospectively from 1 April 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not
be restated.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts and the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a
customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying the new
standards on the Group's consolidated financial statements
and does not expect a significant impact on the Group's
revenue recognition.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach which means that
the cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in
retained earnings as of 1 April 2018 and that comparatives
will not be restated.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and

interpretations that have been issued but are
not effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost
all leases being recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position, as the distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay
rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and
low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the
Group's operating leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$17.7 million (Note 31(b)).

The Group has not yet assessed the adjustments, if any, are
necessary for example because of the change in the definition
of the lease term and the different treatment of variable lease
payments and of extension and termination options. It is
therefore not yet possible to estimate the amount of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities that will have to be recognised
on adoption of the new standard and how this may affect the
Group's profit or loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.

Date of adoption by the Group

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will
not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

There are no other standards and interpretations that are not
yet effective and that would be expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018

2

RETBRBE @D
2.1 WEEE(®)
(b) T M {E M R M2 B AT R -

Alz BT k2R (#E)

ERMBEHREEAE 165 HAE
HEE

BB 7% s 22 R 851657 71020164F
1AEMm ERKEHERGBEM
EvENEBEBER - AEHO
TEBHERLGRA BN &  E
R RBEHAIER  BE(FEREE
HE 2EMN) EXNHEHEHBEE
HERER - E—PIINMER BRI X
EEBEHEE -

SR TR A 2 & 5 B ER i e A
& o

T
ZEABETEFEREBLEHAE
2 EE - RBEAH A&
Bz A HEEEHERENA
17,700,0007% 7T (B 5E31(b)) ©

& H R R A Z S B4
B) Pl AREEHE R 2
PAR: AT B2 7E & 5 R B A AR I AR ISR
BREZAREE - Fit - HARBEM
ST BR AR R 7T 2E B B 4 78 R 7R RO 48
RAEEERHEERBESHEUARES
] B 20 f] 52 28 7K £ 8] ) 8 25 B R 2R

RERENE -

KEEFFHER

BB % RS 2 B 165 15 722019
FIRAIEK 2 EAB P RFEER
BlED - ERBEE  AEEEERN
HAMBBHATRNZER - AEE
BMERMzBEL  BTE2E
BN F—FELLESHE -

HAth AR AR 2 R MR BRI
SHRAHHAARARGENHZE
BURHAERSER IR SERE
AFRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required

upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend

exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the

period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the

investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying

amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3

2.4

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors who collectively make
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of debt securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised costs are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

(ii) income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income presented are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average rate is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's ownership
interest in associates or joint ventures that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control) the
proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference
is reclassified to consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment, other than construction-in-progress, are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

Shorter of remaining lease term of
30-50 years or useful life

2.5% to 8'/3%
Machinery and moulds 10% to 50%
Furniture and equipment 20% to 30%
Motor vehicles 30%

Buildings

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within
“other (losses)/gains — net”, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents consideration
paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants and
buildings are situated for a period of 50 years. Amortisation of land
use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress represents office buildings under
construction and machinery and equipment pending installation. It
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes the
original cost of land, construction expenditures incurred, machinery
and equipment and related installation costs, and other costs
attributable to the construction of the buildings and installation of
machinery and equipment. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction-in-progress until the construction work is completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are brought
into use, the costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated above.

Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in
the consolidated group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases and
buildings held under finance leases.

Land held under operating leases is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it was a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed
annually by external valuers.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,

rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment property (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation reserve of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested at
least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

2.10Financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10Financial assets (Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are classified
as trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents in the statements of financial position (Notes
2.14 and 2.15).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2

2.10Financial assets (Continued) 210 I EE(E)
(b) Recognition and measurement (b) ERKFE
Regular way purchases and sales of investments are —BEEBEAENBAREE  HR
recognised on the date of trade — the date on which the 5B (AIAREBAFEE AR EEZ

Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category,
are presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within “other (losses)/gains — net” in the period in
which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within "other (losses)/gains — net”.
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Dividends on available-
for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.10Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position
date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of
equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Impairment testing of
trade receivables is described in Note 2.14.

2.11 0ffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2017/2018

2

ESBRRBE e
Q10K EE(E

(c) MBEEZRME
ARE GRS PBIRRNK B ER
BEES—MMBEERSHIR
ENEEER BEREEHFRIE
RAHKHE  EHEZIEFEER
B AZBREAFERSARER
RHERERAE - na i iHEFH
BELBRNENS  HRFEBR(Z
W R AR BB AP EZRE R
ERVBEENREFABRENE
REERE) S EEmes - I
REFEE2EBERAER - EFFA
REermBERNBEETARES
BredfratmbiaRm -
& B SR B Rk (BRI S Y RE 2140

it o

RRE:% o =

ERAT TR RHECERSHE
Y EBEZFREEFEXRGEREE
LEERER  WHBEEEBEN AR
o WIEFBERPIEARRKRATIE < JEE
AT SKEARESATE - RE
—REBEEPURANRBHE T HRE
% BEGRNIBER - TAAFGHR
5



Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. As at 31
March 2018, the Group did not designate any derivatives as hedging
instruments. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within “other
(losses)/gains — net”.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.15Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

2.16Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

2.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

All borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liabilities where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.
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Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.19Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.20Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds. A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continvet) 2 FTEESFHBRME 2
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(b) UREZEROREBARZRS

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates a share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group.
The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

e  excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

When the options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

100 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

(c) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
and profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to the Company's
shareholders after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

2.21Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.22Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course
of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax,
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group. Revenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of merchandise

Sales of merchandise are recognised when the related risks
and rewards of ownership of the products delivered have
passed to the customers.

(b) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(c) Management fees and handling income

Management fees and handling income are recognised when
the relevant services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the relevant leases.

2.23 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

2.24Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee (a type of insurance contract) is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to
banks on behalf of subsidiaries to secure loans, overdrafts and other
banking facilities.

The Group performs a liability adequacy test at each statement of
financial position date by comparing its net liability regarding the
financial guarantee with the amount that would be required if the
financial guarantee were to result in a present legal or constructive
obligation. If the liability is less than its present legal or
constructive obligation amount, the entire difference is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. During the
year, no provision has been made in the financial statements for the
financial guarantees.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
subsidiaries or associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost of the investment in the financial statements of the
Company.

2.25Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, as appropriate.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 2

2.26 Government grants

102 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment
are deferred and credited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected
lives of the related assets.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management policy focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Board of
Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
Mainland China with transactions mainly settled in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and
US dollars (“USD"). The Group is mainly exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entities to which they relate.

The Group entered into foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage such exposure for the year.
However, there was no outstanding foreign exchange
forward contract as at 31 March 2018. The net fair value
of foreign exchange forward contract entered into by the
Group for managing the risk relating to monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies at 31 March 2017
was a liability of HK$3,870,000 and has been recognised
as derivative financial instruments.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(M

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2018, if HKD/USD had weakened/
strengthened by 2% (2017: 2%) against RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been approximately HK$315,000 (2017:
HK$3,120,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on net impact on translation of
RMB-denominated net monetary assets of subsidiaries
in Hong Kong and HKD/USD-denominated net monetary
assets of subsidiaries in Mainland China.

Price risk

The Group's investment bonds, listed securities and
investment funds are susceptible to market price risk
arising from uncertainties about future prices of those
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. Management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. Management considered that
the exposure of investment bonds, listed securities and
investment funds to price risk is not significant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except for certain bank deposits, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group generally does not use financial derivatives to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

Management does not anticipate significant impact
resulted from the changes in interest rates on interest-
bearing assets.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

(c)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, cash
and bank deposits, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has put in
place policies to ensure that sales of products are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers and takes
appropriate follow-up actions to recover overdue debts.

The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and
the directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
for uncollectible trade receivables has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, substantially all cash and bank
deposits are placed with major financial institutions located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not expect any
losses arising from non-performance by these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to
the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding to the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group also maintains a
healthy level of liquid assets and committed banking facilities
to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet
any unexpected and material cash requirements in the
ordinary course of business. At 31 March 2018, the Group has
unutilised committed banking facilities of HK$160,600,000
(2017: HK$160,600,000).
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities,
the remaining periods of which at the end of the reporting
period to the contractual maturity date are within 12 months.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
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P REREEE)
3.1 MBERREEE)

() REBHERE)
TEIMAKEZHHRE  BR
SHBERBEEENIHBEZHT
HEANEARN - RTAKRESER
RENAUBERERE -

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
Trade and other payables JE A~ & 3R R EAth B A~ ZR0E 218,259 231,161

There was no outstanding foreign exchange forward contract
as at 31 March 2018. The table below analyses the Group's
derivative financial instruments which will be settled on a
gross basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the date of financial reporting to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows as at 31 March

M201853A31H » A& B I £ Xk
FHNERAELN - TROMASE
ERAEEELETESRMTA
WEH B S WIERP RS
B HEEAYNZHAENRGER
DEE o RPFTEESEABR20174F3
A3MAEXRBRERE -

2017.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 3 3 months Over
1 month months and 1 year 1 year Total
318 A
1MEAR 1ZE31EA B1FE 1FBE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 March 2017: A2017%38318:
Forward currency contracts: R EFIMNES L] :
Inflow mA 14,273 28,546 = = 42,819
Outflow pitas (15,542) (31,084) = = (46,626)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of total equity, including
share capital, other reserves and retained earnings.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group was at the net cash
position.
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Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HMKEBEREE)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AVEME

According to HKFRS 13, financial instruments measured in the RIBFB B IEHRELERE135 - PSR

statement of financial position at fair value are required to disclose ARFERATEFENEMIATS © A

the fair value measurements by level of the following fair value BRI AFEFAEERREATES -

measurement hierarchy:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F1R — HRAEEXRBEEERMISN
identical assets or liabilities. MECREHE) -

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level F2R — BEXBEZBOAELIERE
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either REBIRANZRE) - A EE
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived (B ME(BERSIH)E
from prices). BEEH -

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on F3R — BEXEBBEZHBAEB WK
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). BA B 2 58k (A1 LS

RZBAME) -
The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are TREVNAREER2018F3A3NBEAF
measured at fair value at 31 March 2018. Bt E2MBEE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ER B2 HE34% Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFAERZZ
profit or loss MIEEE
— Listed equity securities and —EmREZFSFR
investment fund KREES 2,145 = = 2,145
Available-for-sale financial assets A S EE
— Corporate bonds —EEH - 3,928 = 3,928
Total HBET 2,145 3,928 - 6,073
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Financial risk management (Continued) 3 MBREBRERE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DT EME(E)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets and TRENNAEER2017F3AMNBEAF
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2017. BifEvMBEEREE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B E2H FE3R HEtT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESAEZZ
profit or loss A EE
— Listed equity securities and —EmREZRSFR
investment funds "EHS 2,938 = = 2,938
Available-for-sale financial assets A ERBEE
— Corporate bonds —EESH = 4,116 = 4,116
Total et 4,116 - 7,054
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBMTA - 3,870 - 3,870

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
(such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the statement of
financial position date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period. Quoted
market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments. The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is
determined using forward exchange market rates at the end of the
reporting period.

There was no transfer of financial assets between Level 1 and Level
2 during the year.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

()

108 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Estimated provision for inventories

The Group makes provision for inventories based on an assessment
of the realisability of inventories. Provisions are recognised where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of inventories may not be realised. The identification of provision
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision for inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. Provisions are
made where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of receivables and impairment is recognised in
the year in which such estimate has been changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, and
related depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment.
The estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. Management will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. It will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d) Impairment of non-financial assets

(e)

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in asset impairment review
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii)
whether the carrying value of an asset is less than the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii) whether
appropriate key assumptions are applied in preparing cash flow
projections including using an appropriate discount rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in the impairment
assessment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's financial position and results of operations. If there
is a significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to charge
an impairment loss to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management expects it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available to utilise against the
temporary differences or tax losses. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred income tax assets in the period in which
such estimates have been changed.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(e) Income taxes (Continued)

Provision for withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries is subject to
management’s estimates that the Company controls the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries.

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM") has been identified
as the executive directors. CODM reviews the Group's internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

CODM assesses the performance of the business from a product
perspective, i.e. by headsets and headphones, and accessories and
components.

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
segment results before corporate expenses, other gains and losses,
finance income and costs.

Revenue between segments is carried out in accordance with the terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties. The revenue from external
parties is derived from numerous external customers and is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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5 Segment information (Continued) 5 oMERE)
Headsets and Accessories and
headphones components Elimination Total
ARERREEEH BHREH Lk HY

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000

Segment revenue oRihON

- External revenue —$IMRA 914,502 862,178 311,619 293,156 = - 1,226,121 1,155,334

- Inter-segment revenue -HBEBA - - 41,633 30834 (41,633)  (30,834) - -
Total et 914,502 862,178 353,252 323,990 (41,633) (30,834) 1,226,121 1,155,334
Segment results DEREE 27,101 (29,247) 60,995 50,072 - - 88,096 20,825
Corporate expenses EZH (5812)  (4374)
Other (losses)/gains — net Hi(8518),/ Was—FE (15973) 12,465
Finance income - net BEKA-FE 3,278 2,193
Profit before income tax BRATE AT A A 69,589 31,109
Other segment information: HthpHEH -
Depreciation of property, nE - BER

plant and equipment RE2E 21,744 24,993 8,927 8,930 - - 30,671 33,923
Amortisation of land use rights TG RE B 161 157 - - - = 161 157
Provision for inventory obsolescence R E# & 13,165 7,158 43 1,263 = - 13,208 8,421
(Reversal of provision)/provision for UL & FRi(E

impairment of trade receivables () /Bie (2,123) 2,176 18 (12) - = (2,105) 2,064

Additions to non-current assets FERENEEEN
(other than financial instruments (BeRmTAK
and deferred income tax assets) REFMEHEEN) 17,935 10,839 8,157 5,464 = - 26,09 16,303
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Segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018, revenues of approximately
HK$770,448,000 (2017: HK$613,324,000) were derived from three
(2017: three) customers, amounted to approximately HK$287,753,000,
HK$279,940,000 and HK$202,755,000 respectively, which individually
accounted for over 10% of the Group's total revenue. These revenues
of approximately HK$527,414,000 (2017: HK$400,764,000) and
HK$243,034,000 (2017: HK$212,560,000) were attributable to headsets
and headphones segment and accessories and components segment
respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. Revenue from external
customers attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March 2018
was approximately HK$1,089,993,000 (2017: HK$879,358,000), and
the total revenue from external customers from Mainland China was
approximately HK$136,128,000 (2017: HK$275,976,000).

At 31 March 2018, the total non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred income tax assets located in Hong Kong
and Mainland China were approximately HK$26,186,000 (2017:
HK$28,708,000) and HK$119,986,000 (2017: HK$110,483,000)
respectively.

112 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018

DEEFR (&)

B Z=2018F3H318 ILF E - £9770,448,0007%%
70(2017 : 613,324,000 70 ) 2 WA Th 3R B =
#(2017 : =R)BF + D RI#5287,753,0007%
JT ~ 279,940,0007% 7T £2202,755,0008 ¢ © & B
(EARNE B E U A10%A £ o E A #527,414,000
#5 70(2017 : 400,764,000 7T ) K2243,034,0007%
70(2017 : 212,560,00078 7T ) 7 5!l A & K B4 &
FEF#HS BEARFERTHDE 2 WA -

RARIABBREN - BE2018F3H31H IEF
ERB BB ZEHINE P U AL A1,089,993,000
78 70(2017 ¢ 879,358,000/8 7C) * M2KBFEHA
Hh 2 ¥ 9N E B IR A 48 58 49 136,128,000 7T
(2017 : 275,976,00056 7T ) °

20183 H31H * e TR RELEFTFH
BEN URBEERPRAMZIERDEER
8 % 3l 49 426,186,000 7T (2017 : 28,708,000
75 7T ) $.119,986,0007% 7T (2017 = 110,483,000
TT) e



Property, plant and equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

6 ME- BEKRE

Leasehold Furniture

land and Machinery and Motor

buildings  and moulds  equipment vehicles Total

HELTH B B

REgF &R R AE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2016 2016545818
Cost AR 176,072 216,588 131,716 19,069 543,445
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (83,689) (174,844) (113,455) (15,686) (387,674)
Net book amount REFE 92,383 41,744 18,261 3,383 155,771
Year ended 31 March 2017 EZ2017F3A31H
LEE
Opening net book amount FAREFE 92,383 41,744 18,261 3,383 155,771
Additions B 17 7,671 4,923 1,117 13,728
Disposals & - (183) (102) = (285)
Transfer from investment properties HBREREME 2,750 - - - 2,750
Depreciation charge MERZ (5.998) (16,335) (9.203) (2,387) (33,923)
Exchange differences BN (4,450) (2,503) (645) (62) (7,660)
Closing net book amount FREEE F(E 84,702 30,394 13,234 2,051 130,381
At 31 March 2017 R2017%3A318
Cost A 165,413 201,970 125,253 18,699 511,335
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (80,711) (171,576) (112,019) (16,648) (380,954)
Net book amount REFE 84,702 30,394 13,234 2,051 130,381
Year ended 31 March 2018 BZ2018F3A31H
LEE

Opening net book amount FOREEE 84,702 30,394 13,234 2,051 130,381
Additions R 174 16,964 9,773 292 27,203
Disposals & = (291) (1) (104) (396)
Depreciation charge nEHRX (6,147) (15,107) (8,233) (1,184) (30,671)
Exchange differences PN ER 6,627 3,603 1,066 85 11,381
Closing net book amount FRERFE 85,356 35,563 15,839 1,140 137,898
At 31 March 2018 M2018%3A31H
Cost B A 180,306 233,847 140,635 18,721 573,509
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (94,950) (198,284) (124,796) (17,581) (435,611)
Net book amount REFE 85,356 35,563 15,839 1,140 137,898

2017/2018 F 3§

ELSEXERERAF

113



Notes to the Financial Statements

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5

6

114 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$22,346,000 (2017: HK$24,170,000) has been
included in cost of sales and HK$8,325,000 (2017: HK$9,753,000) in
general and administrative expenses.

At 31 March 2018, the Group's interests in leasehold land at net book
value of HK$11,010,000 (2017: HK$11,386,000) is located in Hong Kong
and held on leases between 10 to 50 years.

M~ BERRE )

Hr £ B 222,346,000 7T (2017 : 24,170,000
JC) B M9 A A 35 B A A 28,325,000 7T (2017 -
9,753,000/8 70) E M AR — A RITHRZ H ©

MR2018F3A31H + AEENERE)F(E11,010,000
7 70(2017 : 11,386,000 7T ) 2 TH & £ 3t ~ ##
WA ABEBILL0ES0FALOESR -

Investment property REWZE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year F1 1,050 3,530
Fair value gains (Note 22) NFEU S (FEE22) 150 270
Transfer to leasehold land and buildings (Note 6)  EF = E + 10 MiEF (M 556) - (2,750)
End of the year Fr 1,200 1,050

For the year ended 31 March 2018, outgoings in respect of investment
property amounted to HK$4,000 (2017: HK$4,000).

The investment property was revalued at 31 March 2018 by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer.
Valuation was based on current prices in an active market.

At 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group’s interests in investment property
is wholly located in Hong Kong and held on leases between 10 to 50
years.

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment property at
least annually. In the current year, the valuations are performed by LCH
(Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuers. At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their
assessment of the fair value of the property, taking into account the most
recent independent valuations. The directors determine a property's value
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.

Annual Report 2017/2018

HE2018F3A3MBIULFE  BEMEZ T
/34,0007 7T (2017 : 4,000 7T) °

R2018F3A31H WEMXBRBYIEEXLE
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BRI ERTIS ZRITERETT -

R20184F K20174E3A31H » AEBRIREW
EREEHRMUNES LIA0ES0FR L
ﬁ °

HEEE
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RAFEE  ABUEXSERMGEFETA
EBMARABETHE REBSHEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Investment property (Continued)
Valuation basis (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for
similar investment properties. Where such information is not available the
directors consider information from a variety of sources including:

(i)  Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, adjusted
to reflect those differences;

(ii) Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows; or

(iii) Capitalised income projections based upon a property’s estimated
net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an

analysis of market evidence.

The valuation gain is included in “Other (losses)/gains — net” in the
consolidated income statement (Note 22).

The following table analyses the investment property carried at fair value
by valuation method:

Fair value hierarchy

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

REWH (#)
HEEE(E)

NV EZREBPRILERMISEIRENE

ZHE - BEERERGREEANK  8E&

ZRERER - B

(i) ABRMSTRAMEEMEZREIBIME
RBTNERMS ZAE - ARARKRZSE
=

(i) REASEGFHARBRSRZEEFRAS
m ok

(i) REVEZBATSRAFEENMCEE

WA+ BEARFRTIZTISEA DN
MERENGEE AR EM(ER) ke -
FER 5 AR (i FE22) -

TREFIAGEERRAFEARIKRED R 2
X

DNFEER

Fair value measurements at 31 March 2018 using

R2018F3A31H 2 A FEFERERA

Quoted prices in

active markets for Significant other Significant
identical assets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEERERE HtEEAHE EEFTEE
52 ®E(E1R) BB (5824%) WA (F34%)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value KEEQNFETR
measurements
— Car park space —[FEi5 - 1,200 -
Fair value measurements at 31 March 2017 using
R2017F3 A3 B Z A FEFEMRA
Quoted prices in
active markets for Significant other Significant
identical assets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
AR B ERE R HihEEZ A E R BEZ2AER
M52 HmE(E1R) WAEFE2R) BAE(EIR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value KEMATENE
measurements
— Car park space —([FEi5 - 1,050 =
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7 Investment property (Continued) 7 REWE®
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DAREBHRK(E)
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of REBZBERNEHZEEE ARERNE S
fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in BEBK  THRAATEERZEAREDL -
circumstances that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. RER - BHESER F2R R B3R 2 HNER -
Level 2 fair values of investment property has been derived using the FIRBREMEZ A TEEREELRAE
direct comparison approach, which is based on comparing the property H YAk (B 90 56 B30 B AR 5 2 B3 b [ H At AT
to be valued directly with other comparable properties in close proximity, LEEB Y EITEELLR o
which have recently transacted.
8 Land use rights 8 LTiHfERRE
The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease REBER THERE 2 Em ATEMEERAR
payments and their net book value are analysed as follows: BEREEEFEINET ¢
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year 1) 4,047 4,478
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease BHHTR M B H A FRIE
payments (Note 23) (Pft3E23) (161) (157)
Exchange differences E N ZE%R 430 (274)
End of the year FER 4,316 4,047
9 Available-for-sale financial assets 9 mHHEMBEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year F4) 4,116 6,926
Additions IR - 3,890
Disposals s (183) (7,567)
Fair value (losses)/gains transferred to other EREHMPEWE 2 A TE
comprehensive income (Note 20) (E518), Wz (FiF7E20) (25) 45
Release of reserve upon disposal during FREERTRR 2 HE
the year (Note 20) (Bf7E20) 20 822
End of the year FR 3,928 4,116

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets
represented investment bonds. The fair value of the investment bonds
were based on their current bid price in an active market provided by

counterparties.

The available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in USD. None of
these financial assets is either past due or impaired.
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10 Subsidiaries

(a) Principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

Notes to the Financial Statements

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

10 MfE 2 E]

(a) EEMEAT

TR ARATN2018FE3H318 2 F Efift

March 2018: BRAa]:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (ii)
EMRIE, B&f
£ TEREHY FRERNE  IEEY iR 6 &5 BRAFE AR
Charter Media Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading of ~ Ordinary shares HKS3 100%
company electro-acoustic products and
accessories
HEERDE BE BREERE REABRARBEZBEMREH el 3BT 100%
Charter Media (Dongguan) ~ Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture of electro-acoustic Ordinary shares  HK$190,000,000 100%
Company Limited (i) foreign products and accessories
enterprise
PR(RZETER  EAM SNEZERE RETEERREN LB 190,000,000 100%
DA %
Dongguan Full Rich Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares  HK$11,000,000 100%
Precision Metal Products foreign precision metal parts
Company Limited (i) enterprise
REEERTICEN  TERM NERERE HEREERTLERM L@ 11,000,0007% T 100%
BRAF() ¥
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) British Virgin Islands ~ Limited liability  Investment holding Ordinary shares US$3,000 100%
Limited (ji) company
Fujikon Industrial (BVI) ERRUAS BREARE RERR Eak 3,000 7T 100%
Limited (ii)
Fujikon Industrial Company Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Design, manufacture, marketing and Class A HK$2,400,000 -
Limited company trading of electro-acoustic products  (non-voting)
and accessories (i)
EIREXERAH BB BREERR Rt #E HEREEREEM A 2,400,000/ T =
Rt (BIRZE)(il)
Class B HK$600,000 100%
(voting) (iii)
B 600,000 100%
(BRZHE) i
Fujikon International Hong Kong Limited liability  Investment holding Ordinary shares HKS3 100%
Limited company
ELRERERAR ) BEREARNE RERRK ERR 3BT 100%
Fujikon Packing Material  Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and manufacture  Ordinary shares HK$10,000 51%
Company Limited company and trading of packaging materials
ELRBEMNERAR FE BREERR REBRAREEREESEIH LR 10,000/ 7T 51%
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10 Subsidiaries (continued)

10 MfE 2 E]

(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) EEMBAT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (ii)
HMRIE, B&f
£ TELEHY ERERME IERE iR 6 &5 RAFE  FREEE)
Fujikon Precision Metal Hong Kong Limited liability  Investment holding and manufacture ~ Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100%
Products Limited company and trading of precision metal parts
ELIGREELIEHm A BREARR REBBRARHEREERZLE L@k 1000087 100%
BRAR B
Full-Sound (Dongguan) Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of electro-  Ordinary shares  HK$19,400,000 100%
Electrical Products foreign acoustic products and accessories
L|m|ted (i) enterprise
BB (RS )EE“ Bt hER NEAZERE RERREEBEMREN @R 19,400,000 100%
BRAA) ¥
Keen Motion Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Provision of management services ~ Ordinary shares HKS2 100%
company
ZRERLNA BE BREMRR RHEERERH ERR VBT 100%
Landbo Limited Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Property holding Ordinary shares HK$100 100%
company
UREBRAH i BREALE WERAF ERR 10087 100%
Maxchief Enterprises Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding and trading of ~ Ordinary shares HK$150 100%
Limited company electro-acoustic products and
accessories
BELEXERAA EA EREALR REBRAKRESEREDREMN Lk 150/ 7T 100%
Profits (Dongguan) Electric ~ Mainland China Wholly owned Dormant Ordinary shares  HK$5,410,000 100%
Products Company foreign
Limited (i) enterprise
BE(R=)EGHM PR HNERERER RexH L@k 541000087 100%
BRAR() i3
AudiKom Technik Limited  Hong Kong Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares HK$2 100%
(formerly known as company
“Score Merit Limited ")
B SR AR AR (AT
HEBRRAR]) Bt BREMARR  REERK ERR VETL 100%
Smart Success Management  British Virgin Islands ~Limited liability ~ Investment holding Ordinary shares Us$100 100%
Limited company
Smart Success Management RERZHE EREALNR RERRK LR 100%7T 100%
Limited
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10 Subsidiaries (continued)

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

10 BB (&)

(a) Principal subsidiaries (Continued) (a) EEMIBLAT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of
principal place of  Kind of legal Class of issued share Interest
Name operation entity Principal activities shares held capital held (i)
EMALLE BRI
£ TELEHY ERERME IERE FrsRGER BAFE SRR
Dong Guan Fortune Packing Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares ~ HK$34,000,000 51%
Products Company foreign packaging materials
Limited (i) enterprise
REEXEEHERER  TEMM NE2ERE REREEARNE L@ 34,000,000 T 51%
ARl t¥
Qin Zhou Fortune Packing  Mainland China Wholly owned Manufacture and trading of Ordinary shares RMB500,000 51%
Products Company foreign packaging materials
Limited (i) enterprise
INEEOERRER  TEAL NEZERE HEREESEMH LERE 500,000ARE 51%
A7) &x
Notes: Mtk

(b)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Charter Media (Dongguan) Company Limited, Dongguan Full Rich
Precision Metal Products Company Limited, Full-Sound (Dongguan)
Electrical Products Limited, Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products
Company Limited and Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products Company
Limited are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in Mainland
China to be operated for 25 years up to May 2019, 17 years up to
October 2021, 22 years up to April 2024, 25 years up to November
2024 and 20 years up to July 2034, respectively.

The shares of Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited are held directly by the
Company. The shares of other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

Holders of Class A (non-voting) shares have no voting rights, are not
entitled to dividends unless the net profit of the company exceeds
HK$900,000,000,000, and are not entitled to any distribution upon
winding up unless a sum of HK$900,000,000,000 has been distributed
by the Company to holders of Class B (voting) shares.

Material non-controlling interests

As at 31 March 2018, the total non-controlling interests were

HK$5

4,822,000 (2017: HK$47,605,000), solely representing their

interests in Fujikon Packing Material Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries,

name

ly Dong Guan Fortune Packing Products Company Limited and

Qin Zhou Fortune Packing Products Company Limited (the “FPC
Group”).

(b)

2017/2018 F 3§

() % ER) EFERAF RxE2EHEHET0
PERAERAT T (Rx) ERMHHAE
RATE REERBEHMBRDT RN
EEBREMARIFEANFERNMA
MZINEEERERHE ZECERIRIL
25F 201958  17F 20219104 - 22
FE024F48  25F E2024F 1M A R20FE
2034578 °

(i) Fujikon Industrial (BVI) Limited 2 f%1% F Z<
AREERE HtMBARZENH
WEEREA -

AE(ERZR)ROFE AL EEZE -
TR AR S - BRIEAR A R 4L TR B
900,000,000,00074 7T, + B WA /E BB M IEE
BEMSIE - F3E900,000,000,0007% 7T 2
BWEEHADNR DR TBE(HIRER) K
MDIRAA -

(iii)

ERFERMES

R2018F3 8318 » FEIEFIMEZBLTE S
54,822,0005% 7T.(2017 : 47,605,000 7T )
BRENE IR EEYRARA R REK
BAw IREEXRBEZMABRAR K
PNEEeREmERAT([ETae%
YIRS E ) 2 s o
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10 MY 2B &)
(b) EARFEHIMEERE)

TRV ELSEEMHEEEEB ALK
BEAZFEHEREMHEERBE -

10 Subsidiaries (continued)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for FPC
Group that has non-controlling interests that are material to the

Group.
Summarised statement of financial position BMBERARBE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets FEMEEE 24,871 22,242
Current assets MENEE 130,738 126,126
Current liabilities mENBE (43,727) (51,215)
Net assets EEFE 111,882 97,153
Summarised income statement Was k2
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue WA 308,696 261,215
Profit before income tax B Fr 45 75 Al s A1 60,946 52,464
Income tax expenses FrB i (12,455) (8,524)
Profit for the year F N F 48,491 43,940
Other comprehensive income Hap 2 mEU S 6,238 (3,892)
Total comprehensive income HE W =B 54,729 40,048
Total comprehensive income allocated 9> Fid 2= FE#2 1 (4 E 25 Y
to non-controlling interests FHEWE=ERE 26,817 19,624
Dividends paid to non-controlling IR AST T FE 2 61 1 2 Y
interests % B 19,600 12,250
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10 Subsidiaries (continued) 10 B AT (&)
(b) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) EARFEZEHIMRERSE)
Summarised cash flows REREME
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net cash generated from operating activities 4X& /EE TS 2 HEF58 52,577 27,081
Net cash used in investing activities KEERSMA RS T (7.761) (3,493)
Net cash used in financing activities BEERBMA RS TR (40,000) (25,000)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash B NBSEEBYEM
equivalents ORt ) 58 4,816 (1.412)
Exchange differences on cash and cash ReRBCEEYENZH
equivalents 678 (168)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FMHReMREEEY
the year 48,998 50,578
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F#IH& RIREEEY 54,492 48,998
11 Inventories 11 78
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials JR# 128,856 75,379
Work-in-progress 1 8 62,479 42,865
Finished goods BUAK o 45,776 40,453
237,111 158,697
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in ERAESHENGFABEERARNZFEX KL A
cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$965,169,000 (2017: 965,169,000/ 7 (2017 : 960,394,000/ 7T ) ° &
HK$960,394,000). For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has ZF2018F3A3NBILFE - AEEEHZRE
made a net provision for inventory obsolescence of approximately F 8 49 413,208,0007% 70 (2017 : 8,421,000
HK$13,208,000 (2017: HK$8,421,000). JT) °
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12 Trade and other receivables

12 BWE R E B WK IE

The Group grants credit periods to customers ranging from 7 to 120
days. At 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$194,989,000 (2017:
HK$177,071,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These related to a
number of independent customers for whom there was no relevant history
of default. As of 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$4,975,000
(2017: HK$6,444,000) were impaired. The amount of the provision
was HK$2,352,000 as of 31 March 2018 (2017: HK$4,565,000). The
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers, which are in
financial difficulties. It was assessed that a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. A majority of these receivables have been past
due for over 3 months. At 31 March 2018 and 2017, other receivables are
not considered impaired and have no relevant history of default.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables by past due date is as
follows:

NEBBRTFREEIEI208 2ZEH - 120184
3A318 @ fEUE /194,989,000 7T (2017 :
177,071,000 7 ) 30 #% 480 23 R Rk (B © 32 B K
BHRETWERABENERTCHENEBYRRE,E
7 o # Z=201843831H » B IR & 54,975,000
75 70(2017 : 6,444,00078 7T ) E G IR R E - B
£2018F3H318 - & & € 58 52,352,000/ 7T
(2017 = 4,565,000/ 7T ) ° {& 5! L35 5 (B 2 FEUL
RBFXZHPHAEZEFEHE - HatIoE
WERIB AT | - 22 F ERGRIB A 35 B B
3@31E A - R20184F %201743 A318 » EfthfE
WSO SR T8 N AR, 74 5 B T 4 A B HE X 38 SR EC 8% ©

REMBERAE 2 REER Rk DTOT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current = HA 194,989 177,071
1 to 30 days 1230H 15,909 25,652
31 to 60 days 31260H 9,893 4,386
61 to 90 days 61290H 3,780 1,985
Over 90 days 90H A E 6,113 9,476
230,684 218,570

Less: Provision for impairment of trade B B E R R ERE
receivables (2,352) (4,565)
Trade receivables — net ERER—F5 228,332 214,005
Other receivables H fh R U FRIB 30,005 24,444
258,337 238,449

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables from the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 81.4% (2017: 72.4%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group's approach of managing credit risk is disclosed in
Note 3.

122 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017/2018

A58 B R S R L PR R 2 R (BB
AFEIEE -

M2018F3A31H ' REAARF ZEWER
KR4I EF81.4% (2017 : 72.4%) - NEH
HEERKRZEEFHAMEIRE -



12 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables of HK$30,720,000 (2017:
HK$35,055,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no significant
financial difficulty and based on past experience, the overdue amounts
can be recovered. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as
follows:

12 EWERKEMEWRFIE#)

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

201838310 ' EMBERBRENEKRE
X 430,720,0005% 7T (2017 : 35,055,000/8 7T ) °
W EFBRZZWES AT REENBLEF
B BERBELR  ZEAHFET TR
Bl o ZERNERHIREDITAT ¢

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

1 to 30 days 1230H 15,909 25,652
31 to 60 days 31£260H 9,893 4,357
61 to 90 days 61290H 3,780 1,985
Over 90 days 90H M E 1,138 3,061
30,720 35,055

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivable balances
are denominated in the following currencies:

7 5% 8] S R e L s R MR R TR A Bk R T DA
TSI -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 7,035 5,473
RMB AR 48,241 67,763
usb ETT 203,061 163,474
Others HAth - 1,739
258,337 238,449
Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the AEBRKEFRERBEESOT
Group are as follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Beginning of the year FH) 4,565 2,844
(Reversal of provision)/provision for impairment JEi{E ([E1#) /##

(Note 23) (B&E23) (2,105) 2,064
Receivables written off as uncollectible AR E] 7 FE WS R 88 (113) (337)
Exchange differences ME = HR 5 (6)
End of the year FR 2,352 4,565

The (reversal of provision)/provision for impairment of trade receivables
made during the year have been included in the general and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FRELZBEEFURE(DR) BEDTA
At RERZ —REITERBS
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13 Derivative financial instruments

There was no outstanding foreign exchange forward contract as at 31
March 2018.

As at 31 March 2017, derivative financial instruments mainly represented
foreign exchange forward contracts and the amounts are denominated in
USD. The notional principal amount of the outstanding foreign exchange
forward contract was HK$46,626,000. This foreign exchange forward
contract was held for trading and matured in June 2017.

14 Other financial assets at fair value through profit

13 fT&E€mIT A
201838318 + AEE W EKRE HINER
HAEL -
R201753A318 » HTE SR T AT EINE
REAY - HEFBUFETTIIE - REEIINER
HA #) 2 £ N4 5 /546,626,000 TT © %5
EBEB ZINERIAHNTHR20175E6 AZIH] -

14 BAOFEFARSNEMEMBEE

or loss
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Listed equity securities and investment funds FTREZLHREEES 2,145 2,938

The fair value of all equity securities and investment funds at fair value
is based on their current bid prices in an active market. Other financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in the
following currencies:

BAVFEINENEHREBSFRREESZA
FEDREBEEEERMSER 2 EREET -
BAFEFABRNEMPBEENTIES
R

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

HKD BIT 1,296 1,431
RMB AR 849 763
usb ETT - 744
2,145 2,938

15 Cash and cash equivalents 15 RERRESEEY

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash at bank and on hand WITFERRRE 188,073 444,171
Short-term bank deposits 5 ERERITIF 3K 220,560 11,774
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 408,633 455,945

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was approximately
2.10% (2017: 0.01%) per annum. These deposits have an average
maturity of 14 days (2017: 1 day).
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15 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 15 BEeRAESEEBWH)
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies: ReRBREEEMATINEETIERE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
HKD BT 11,640 13,184
RMB AR 175,921 112,382
usD e 216,827 329,556
Others EHfh 4,245 823
408,633 455,945
At 31 March 2018, approximately HK$45,090,000 (2017: HK$92,816,000) 7201853 H31H + K & E £945,090,000% 7T
of the Group's cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in Mainland (2017 = 92,816,0007%8 7T ) 17 AU AN AP B A b 2R 17
China were denominated in RMB, which is subject to foreign exchange 2EeRBESEEMUARBIE  MARE
control regulations of Mainland China. = i B R SN B A AR BRI o
16 Trade and other payables 16 ERERKRHMENRIEA
As at 31 March 2018, the ageing analysis of trade payables by past due M2018F3H31H - AP HFAE 2 ENE
date is as follows: R EREDITIT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current = 5 188,881 150,394
1 to 30 days 1230H 3,462 26,747
31 to 60 days 31260H 7,973 2,914
61 to 90 days 61290H 773 9,935
Over 90 days 90H M E 4,579 4,750
Trade payables ENER 205,668 194,740
Accruals and other payables FEET & B & E b fE S FUE 100,078 78,931
305,746 273,671
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other payables NEEE 2 FE A RO E A R A IR 2 BRIEE
approximate their fair values. HAFERS -
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16 Trade and other payables (Continued)

16 ENERKEMENSFIEE)

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other payables balances REEZENERREMBEMNFIBLESR 2 EE

are denominated in the following currencies:

BATIIEESI -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

HKD T 20,782 16,797
RMB AR 220,330 208,340
usb = 64,510 43,885
Others HAity 124 4,649
305,746 273,671

17 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 17 EZFiIBREERES

Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted

by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a

BIEFTS TR A A EAR TR ZRIZP IR
XAHEREMKBEERMZHE2BGE -

ELBHEERABENATIREE R

legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax WIAE BB S AR B EBITRE N B E I MOk
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal RS ER - REEERERS - B8
authority. HH o
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFTSTLE E -
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after #1218 B 18 U 21 R iR iE
more than 12 months HEEE 5,836 4,786
Deferred income tax liabilities: RIEFTSTLBME
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after #1218 A 18 U 21 R iR 3T
more than 12 months HEaE (1,491) (700)
4,345 4,086
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17 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities (continued)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

17

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

ELEFREHEERER )
BIEFTSBIRE 2 SBFAEMT -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 April R4A1H 4,086 2,709
Deferred income tax (charged)/credited to RErA 2 ERERP (X))

consolidated statement of comprehensive FTAZIBEEFTSE

income (Note 25) (B5E25) (190) 1,594

Exchange differences PE =58 449 (217)

At 31 March M3A31H 4,345 4,086

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the

year are as follows:

FREEFBHARERE E(HA— M %
HEE 2 A AIE 33T) 2 BB T -

Deferred income tax assets Tax losses Provisions and others Total
EERBHEE HIEEE BiEREM st
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H 3,196 473 2,506 3,905 5,702 4,378
(Charged)/credited to RérE 2 EWE
consolidated statement of =P (X)),
comprehensive income A (3,196) 2,723 2,881 (1,182) (315) 1,541
Exchange differences ME 5 = = 449 (217) 449 (217)
At 31 March M3 A31H = 3,196 5,836 2,506 5,836 5,702
Accelerated tax
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation Others Total
BELEFEHREE IERB E B Hit st
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H (1,610) (1,641) (6) (28) (1,616) (1,669)
Credited/(charged) to Wi E 2 ER
consolidated statement of KAst A
comprehensive income (X $8) 147 31 (22) 22 125 53
At 31 March M3A31H (1,463) (1,610) (28) (6) (1,491) (1,616)
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17

18

128 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of HK$7,518,000 (2017: HK$4,837,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$31,266,000 (2017: HK$20,541,000) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income, of which HK$27,755,000 (2017:
HK$17,029,000) will expire in five years and the remaining amount has
no expiry date.

As at 31 March 2018, deferred income tax liabilities have not been
recognised for the withholding tax that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries, as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that no material temporary differences will be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

17

EEFFEREERERE®)

BEMBEHEEESER LB BARRAI AT
HERABTEMNB 2B TERRBEEERS
o REBRERELEFBHEEAT,518,000
75 70(2017 © 4,837,000 ) - BEEAEELES
31,266,0007% 7T (2017 : 20,541,000/8 7T ) » % &
BLEA TAE UK ARRAEBRWE &
#127,755,0007% 7T (2017 : 17,029,0005% 7T ) #5 7
RENER - MESSELEERBEH -

M2018F3A31H - AEBEITERE THEBR
RIZ REIR T EH 2 BN ERIELATEH
B AAXAEBAENITHEREZFEREL 2
BEfE - B A RS R A RENr B KB Ay = 58 A
FEED o

Share capital 18 B
2018 2017

Number of Number of

shares shares

RHHE Rin g B
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRERE
AR

Beginning of the year F1)) 420,263 42,026 420,193 42,019
Exercise of share options during the year FRITRERE 804 81 70 7
End of the year FHR 421,067 42,107 420,263 42,026

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 804,000 shares of HK$0.1
each were issued upon exercise of the share options at an aggregate
consideration of HK$885,000. These shares rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares.

Annual Report 2017/2018

REE2018F3A83MALFE - ABEREET
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19 Share options

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the Company passed on 21 August
2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme")
which complied with Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). At the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 3 August 2012, an ordinary
resolution was passed for the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) and the termination of the Old Scheme. Under the share
option schemes, the Company may grant options to any eligible employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director), any
non-executive director, any shareholder, any supplier and any customer of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest, and any other party having
contributed to the development of the Group to subscribe for shares in
the Company, subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors, and will not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

19 BRE

BIE AR RQ B R200268HA21B BB 2 LB ER
EE ARRIRMTEBRTES LAl
([ EMRANDFEVTERTE 2 BIRERT ([ &5
2)1) o AATM201298 3B 17 2 BB E
Ae b BBEERERURNTBRAETE
([FrET8l DAL IEEETE - BIREARERTE -
KARAMARBKEEMH B AR AL
EEMKE QR FEEMRE EAEE (T
MEEREE(ERIEE  RETAHNITE
F) AEENITEE - EEKRE - EAHE
BREMNEF  REAASBEREELERZ
EREMA TR EEREARBRATRG -
MEFTH BRI DR RBAR R TR 2B EITR
ATHEE230% ©

RBESHARRESSET @ LR TERA
TREZ&RE :

(a) BORNEBNEBEBXMERERERMT
ZYWHE

(b) BIRERBENERRAMERSBERR
P B RERMATZFHERTE &

(0 MpmfE -
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19 Share options (Continued)

19

Movements of share options under the Old Scheme during the year were

EREw
FREFEAT ZBREZHOT :

as follow:
Lapsed/ Lapsed/
Subscription Exercised cancelled Exercised cancelled
Date of price per At during the  during the At during the  during the At
grant Exercise period share  01/04/2016 year year  31/03/2017 year year  31/03/2018
R R2016% FRE¥/  R2017F FREM/  R2018F
BHAM RS ABE 4A18 FRTE #3831 FRfE Z#  3A31H
HKS ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 '000
22/05/2007  22/05/2008 - 1.98 10,800 - - 10,800 - 10,800 -
21/05/2017 (Note i)
(B &ED)
28/03/2012  28/03/2013 - 1.10 6,736 - % 6,640 166 208 6,266
27103/2022 (Note i)
(&£
28/03/2014 - 1.10 6,000 - - 6,000 - - 6,000
27103/2022 (Note ii)
(Bt 3Eii)
28/03/2015 - 1.10 3,374 70 116 3,188 638 428 2,122
27103/2022 (Note iii)
(Bt Ziii)
16,110 70 212 15,828 804 636 14,388

Notes:

(i)  The options were subject to a vesting period of one year from the date of

grant.

(i)  The options were subject to a vesting period of two years from the date of

grant.

(iii)  The options were subject to a vesting period of three years from the date of

grant.

(iv)  The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before various

dates during 2018 and 2017 on which the options were exercised were
HK$1.45 and HK$1.14 respectively.
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19 Share options (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted were as follows:

19

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

BREE

Bz - (&)

(v)

AARBRMNEEBRER LS B A ER AR
BIERIL 2B ENT

Closing price per share immediately
before the date of grant (HK$)

Date of grant g =k EEBEHEAMZESRUTECET)
22 May 2007 2007F5H22H 1.95
28 March 2012 201243 A28H 1.10

At 31 March 2018, outstanding options of 14,388,000 were exercisable (2017:
26,628,000).

The Company has used the Binomial Model for assessing the fair value of
the share options granted. According to the Binomial Model, the fair value
of the options granted during the year ended 31 March 2012 measured as at
the date of grant of 28 March 2012 was approximately HK$0.273, HK$0.288
and HK$0.294 per share, respectively, taking into account various factors,
variables and assumptions which include the following:

(i)  exercise multiple was applied to the historical information of the
option holders, on average, would exercise their options when the
stock price is 160% of the exercise price;

(ii)  the risk-free interest rate used was 1.27%;

(i)  the expected volatility was about 43%; and

(iv)  the expected annual dividend yield of 5.73%.

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously
compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share
prices over the last ten years.

As at 31 March 2018, no share options were granted under the New
Scheme.

(vi)

(vii)

720184F3 431 H - 14,388,000 (2017 : 26,628,000)
D ARITEERE AR ] TAT(E o

RARFAZHEARNTEAELEREZA
FE - BEZIEAER - REE201263A31H
IEFEREERE 2 A FE(Z201263 5286
B HIFE ) BA AFAR0.2734 T + 0.288
I R02948 T - WEFRSERE - #HK
BRe& - B -

() BAEBHERINTERGE  RUEE
B BRERA AT RREZEDITE
8,2 160%FF 1T B AR 4%

(i) PFETEzERBRFIERR127E

(i) TEAIRREREIERL R43% K&

(iv) TESEFERBWEEERS.73% °

2 R0 (L R0 IR 2 2T O B TR IR
BE+FEAREZAIHHIES -

R201853 A31 0 BEERIEH 58I R LB

1E -

2017/2018 F 3§

ELSEXERERAF

131



Notes to the Financial Statements

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5

20 Other reserves

20 Hituf#kE

Property  Capital
Share revaluation  reserve

Statutory Share
reserve Investment  option  Exchange

premium reserve (a) (b) reserve  reserve reserve Total
WEER BXREE ZERE BhRiE
R4 1E & (a) (b) RERE e ERRE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
At 1 April 2016 20164818 112,399 1,041 1,607 3,791 (824) 10,837 54,039 182,890
Currency translation differences & K =28 - - - - - - (27,347)  (27,347)
Fair value gains on available-for- FI &R EE Y
sale financial assets AT EYRE - - - - 45 - - 45
Release of investment reserve & AT S BT
upon disposal of available-for- ;ﬁéﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁz
sale financial assets RAHE - - - = 822 = = 822
Release of exchange reserve upon =t #50TB 22 RIS P2
deregistration of a subsidiary bR B X - - - - - - 390 390
Employee share option scheme:  {E B SR #E51 2] :
— Lapse of share options —BRERN - - = = = (60) = (60)
— Proceeds from shares issued ~ —{T{FEEALAE M %
upon exercise of share i rdics]
options HA 70 - - - - - = 70
— Exercise of share options — 11 RERE 20 = = = = (20) = =
At 31 March 2017 M2017%3831H 112,489 1,041 1,607 3,791 43 10,757 27,082 156,810
Currency translation differences [ 5% 258 - - - - - - 40,188 40,188
Fair value losses on available-for- A] ¢t H &8 EE 2
sale financial assets NEEEE = = = = (25) = = (25)
Release of investment reserve & AT 4 H £ 81 7%
upon disposal of available-for-  EERFTHER 2
sale financial assets RAHE - - - = 20 = - 20
Employee share option scheme: [ 8 Bk iE 2] :
— Lapse of share options —BREXN - = = = - (6,457) - (6,457)
— Proceeds from shares issued ~ —{T{EEB LT %
upon exercise of share 11l 2 &
options IR 804 - - - - - - 804
~ Exercise of share options — TR 233 = = = = (233) = =
Appropriation of statutory reserve #51 % % = - - 399 - - - 399
At 31 March 2018 #2018F3H31H 113,526 1,041 1,607 4,190 38 4,067 67,270 191,739

Notes: MizE -

(@) Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of (a) BAXRBEEARRMBETEBRR 2 @EERE
the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of 20006F3 A AN E B EA A TR MUEE 2 B A
the share capital and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an AIRANE AR BB 2 =58 -
exchange of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation in March 2000.

(b)  Statutory reserve represents general reserve fund required to be set up (b) EEHEEEARBEYIRANMEEZSRNEBRE

pursuant to the laws of Mainland China for the Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China. The general reserve fund can only be used to make up for
losses incurred, increase registered capital or use for collective welfare of
employees.
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21 Revenue

The Group is principally engaged in the design, manufacture, marketing
and trading of electro-acoustic products, accessories and other electronic
products and property holding. Revenues recognised during the year are

Notes to the Financial Statements

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

21 WA

AEBETIZEBRRG  BE HERHKEEE
BER ROREMEFERRSENE - F
MR ZWALT

as follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Sales of merchandise BEmiHE 1,202,685 1,145,895
Handling income BRI A 23,256 9,260
Management fees EEE 154 155
Rental income A A 26 24
1,226,121 1,155,334
22 Other (losses)/gains — net 22 Hi(E5E) Wi — FE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fair value gains on derivative financial PTEERMIAZATE
instruments & 3,870 4,502
Fair value (losses)/gains on other financial BAFEG AEZLHA
assets at fair value through profit or loss W EEZATE
(E18), W (49) 415
Fair value gains on investment property wEWMEZ NTE
(Note 7) Wezs (BFEE7) 150 270
Net gains on deregistration of a subsidiary FEEHMT B A Rl 2 a5 R - 390
Net losses on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEENBEE
financial assets Z B85 (20) (822)
Net (losses)/gains on disposal of other financial H &% A FE ABZEH
assets at fair value through profit or loss HiBsEE 2 (88),/
Was =R (19) 8
Net gains on disposal of property, plant and LEME - WE&&E
equipment 2 W as ¥R 1 571
Net realised losses from derivative financial PMTESMTACEERER
instruments B8 5 (3,529) (8,652)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains FEH (F518) e F 58 (16,377) 15,783
(15,973) 12,465
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23 Operating profit 23 KERF
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: R ME MR (GEA) TFIEE :
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Auditor’s remuneration ZEAN B & 1,626 1,626
Amortisation of land use rights b {E FRRE < B 8H 161 157
Cost of inventories (Note) FERAKE) 965,169 960,394
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - E KRB ZITE 30,671 33,923
Operating lease rental of premises WEZEERNER 7,393 7,342
Provision for inventory obsolescence REBE 13,208 8,421
(Reversal of provision)/provision for impairment &40 & FURE (@155 ) /B &
of trade receivables (2,105) 2,064
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) EETH(BREEZHS)
(Note 28) (Ff45E28) 340,172 323,470
Note: Costs of inventories included but not limited to costs of materials, e EERABEETERERKA - o
subcontracting charges, staff costs (refer to Note 28) and manufacturing A EEXH(RKE28) MBEEM -
overheads.
24 Finance income - net 24 WMEWA —F
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest income from AT ZH YA
— available-for-sale financial assets — A EMBEE 184 583
— bank deposits —RITFHK 3,106 1,610
Interest expense FE X H (12) =
3,278 2,193
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25 Income tax expenses

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March 2035.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for the year. The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to the China Corporate Income Tax at a rate of 25% (2017: 25%)
on estimated assessable profits.

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on
dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Withholding taxes are
payable on dividends distributed/to be distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

25 FREHX L

ARRRHARERBEEE2035F3ARLE

EENESHBBOCIRBEARESEELIRE
ES 2 (hEt ERR RS FA16.5% (2017 : 16.5%)
REFE - REERF AR 2 WEQRER
5T FE SR B 1 A25% (2017 = 25% ) Bt R
REI S EERTEH o

RIBEFFE - AP BRIMEEESTIRRARN
FR B A AR S 2 SN 4 1 R AR B U1 0%
FEHF o %R F H52008451 51 BB A KI @A
PR2007F12 A1 REFTEE 2 &F o fi B 6
BIMNGEE B AR 2 HEBREEBRK
4 AT IRBRTEIN R REH - Bt - Btz
FR R B 37 2 B B A B 5£20084F1 A1 H
BELEZEMNMDIK/ BFORZKEHMRIE
E -

iR a 2R ERAMBOHIRSERE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current income tax B HIFREH

— Current tax on profits for the year —FREMN 2 E HARIA 14,887 7,734
— (Over)/under-provision in prior years —EFCBR), T REBE (101) 668
— Withholding tax on dividends — IR EFEH 334 =
15,120 8,402

Deferred income tax charge/(credit) RIEFTEH S H(ER)
(Note 17) (M¥sE17) 190 (1,594)
15,310 6,808

2017/2018 £ BT SBEEZERERAE 135



Notes to the Financial Statements

FA %55 4R 3R Fft 5

25 Income tax expenses (Continued) 25 BB H#®)
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the N BB ATS B AR A 2 B TE EAR AN A B TS
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home BRBERFAE 2 EREE2ERMAT ¢

country of the Company as follows:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit before income tax B PRS2 A& A 69,589 31,109
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% BT %16.5% (2017 - 16.5%)
(2017: 16.5%) AtE 11,482 5,133
Effect of different taxation rates R BE R RRF R 7 g2 2
in Mainland China (2,335) (1,165)
Income not subject to taxation AR 2 BA (1,820) (758)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purpose AL gh R T HBR 2 32 1 1,828 2,760
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses {f Fl 1+ & R #ER 2 B IS E 1B (282) (117)
Tax losses not recognised RERBZ RIBEE 4,458 3,920
(Over)/under-provision in prior years TFECAR), T REE (101) 668
Withholding tax on dividends i B FEH 334 =
Others Hi 1,746 (3,633)
Income tax expenses P B2 b 15,310 6,808
26 Dividends 26 RE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim dividend paid of HK4.0 cents B B B TR AR
(2017: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share 4.07%11(2017 : 1.07%&1L) 16,824 4,202
Proposed final dividend of HK5.0 cents ERABREEREER
(2017: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share 5.07811(2017 : 5.07%&1L) 21,053 21,013
Proposed special final dividend of nil EREFRIREBR SR T ER
(2017: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share (2017 : 2.07(0) = 8,405
37,877 33,620
At a meeting held on 20 June 2018, the Board of Directors recommended 20186 H20B BT E8& L EFgRE
a final dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary share amounting to a total A & IR AR R B AR B5.008 1l - mEE
of HK$21,053,000. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend 21,053,000/ 70 - AR E TR EZEHRE M
payable in these consolidated financial statements, and will be reflected BWEPIMERMNRE » A RENEZE2019
as appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 March 2019. FIANBIUEFEZRE RO -
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27 Earnings per share 27 BREF
Basic B
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable BREARBMTDAGREB AR RREREAZ R
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of FIBRAF AR BT EBERZ INETHEGE -

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2018 2017
Profit attributable to equity holders of the SEEADRIBERE A
Company (HK$'000) 2R (FAET) 30,518 2,770
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2217 Z@% 2
issue (in thousands) DOREF I E(FR%) 420,459 420,213
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERZEF CGEMWL) 7.3 0.7
Diluted BE
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted BRESERT D RBFARFITEINE B Z M
average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of T HEIRBRAMA B TS L ARE SR
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of HoARAAE—REE#HELER  NER
dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, RE o BEEIREM S - THiRIR M RIT SRR ARIE PR
a calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have MREE, EEEEETHENEEITRAT
been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market B(BEERAAAROZFHEBEFME)WEZ
price of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the RHEE - EXEE 2RMHEE HERRERE
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of BT RET 2 ROHEEES -
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
2018 2017
Profit attributable to equity holders of the EBANTIRERB A
Company (HK$'000) 2w A (FETT) 30,518 2,770
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 2217 Z@E 2
issue (in thousands) DOREF S S (FRR) 420,459 420,213
Adjustment for potential dilutive effect in B ARITEERE
respect of outstanding share options (in BT RS
thousands) ZHAE(TR) 1,574 953
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for & SRESERF 2
diluted earnings per share (in thousands) T m AR pnE 9 E (T AR) 422,033 421,166
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRESEREF OB) 7.2 0.7
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28 Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 28 EEXH(BREEME)

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

Wages and salaries ITERF® 302,162 283,286

Other staff benefits HEMETEF 13,916 18,055
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BREXH—FERE

(Note 32) HRET 8 (FEE32) 24,094 22,129

340,172 323,470

(a) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2017: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 29. The
emoluments payable to the remaining two (2017: two) individuals

during the year are as follows.

(a) EBBZEHAL

FRAAEBEBREZERRFTATIRBE =S
(2017 : =ZR)EF  FEZMESERM
TR AITRER - FRER R TRE
(2017 : MB)ALTZEEAT -

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

Wages and salaries ITERF® 4,774 3,486
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RS H—F8E

(Note 32) ke8I (F3E32) 24 24

4,798 3,510

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individuals fell within the

following bands:

ERATZMENMTRTINEER

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) B < &5 & (B oT)
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 721,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017%8 7T £ 2,500,000/% 7T 2 1
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29 Benefits and interests of directors 29 EEEANEERE
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMS
Salary,

allowances Pension costs

and benefits Discretionary and share
Name of Director Fees in kind bonuses options Total

=41 BiReZH
BEEnsE Be KREVEA [} =grAaN RERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z2018%3831H

LEE
Executive Directors HTES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny &

(Chief Executive Officer) (1THEE) - 2,257 689 3 2,949
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R T 48 = 2,194 689 3 2,886
Chow Man Yan, Michael b - 2,194 689 3 2,886
Yuen Chi King, Wyman TRFER = 1,534 355 21 1,910
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben B - 1,729 355 21 2,105
Chow Lai Fung EER = 1,534 355 21 1,910
Independent non-executive Directors BN IFHITES
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEY 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen BERE 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun BN, 250 - - - 250
For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z201753A31H

LEE
Executive Directors HTES
Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny 7

(Chief Executive Officer) (T8 2) - 2,191 - 3 2,194
Yuen Yee Sai, Simon R T 48 = 2,129 = 3 2,132
Chow Man Yan, Michael A= - 2,129 - 3 2,132
Yuen Chi King, Wyman IRFE - 1,355 - 21 1,376
Yeung Siu Chung, Ben P! - 1,355 - 21 1,376
Chow Lai Fung [AER - 1,355 - 2 1,376
Independent non-executive Directors B IFMTES
Chung Chi Ping, Roy EEY 250 - - - 250
Che Wai Hang, Allen BEE 250 - - - 250
Lee Yiu Pun I 250 - - - 250
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(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a
director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking.

(i) No remuneration has been paid by the Group to the Directors as an
inducement to join upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office during the current and prior years. There was no arrangement
under which a Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the current and prior years.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits during the year (2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2017: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2017: Nil).
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ERB S 2 25 -

ESRAREANRARLERER

FA - HEERE WIS EEUEEAR
BRI EREER (2017 : &) -

RRUESEREAE=FTRE2AE

HZE218F3A31BILFE » AR A&
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30 MEBEERERME
(a) AEERFRLCLLBHREIEEY

30 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated

from operations: R -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for the year AN & s A 54,279 24,301
Adjustments for: MATEIBELFE
— Amortisation of land use rights — i fE AR 2 B8R 161 157
— Depreciation of property, plant and —W%E  HBEK
equipment HEITE 30,671 33,923
— Finance income — net —EEWA —F58 (3,278) (2,193)
— Income tax expenses — e H 15,310 6,808
— Fair value gains on derivative financial —PTHESRIA
instruments NEER (3,870) (4,502)
— Fair value losses/(gains) on other financial —~ —1&ZAFExH ABZAY
assets at fair value through Hit B EE 2
profit or loss NEEEE, (W) 49 (415)
— Fair value gains on investment property —REWEQNTE 2 W (150) (270)
— Net losses on disposal of available-for- —HERHEEMKEE
sale financial assets ZERFE 20 822
— Net losses/(gains) on disposal of other —HERATER ABRER
financial assets at fair value through HiB B EEZ R
profit or loss (Weam ) F5R 19 (8)
— Net gains on disposal of property, —HEME  BEEREZ
plant and equipment W F 58 (1) (571)
— Net gains on deregistration of a subsidiary ~ — sESH B A A 2 Wias /5 58 = (390)
— Provision for inventory obsolescence —RERE 13,208 8,421
— (Reversal of provision)/provision for —EWEFRE(ER),
impairment of trade receivables tEic] (2,105) 2,064
— Exchange differences —[E R =% 21,140 (14,296)
125,453 53,851
Changes in working capital: EEESEY
— Inventories -EF8 (75,253) (7,020)
— Trade receivables —FEURE R (10,224) 617
— Other receivables — H b FEUSRIAR (490) (14,125)
— Trade payables —ERER (5,339) 61,147
— Accruals and other payables —JERT B R R EAE IR 14,899 8,164
Cash generated from operations REEBRISZHE 49,046 102,634
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30 Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows 30 FFEEREREXRMTE(2)

(Continued)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing activities during the year: (b) FARMETHRE D :
Share capital and share premium
A& A B A& A7 i (B
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April R4A1H 154,515 154,418
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 77 {# B A% 4 i 25 1T AX (2 885 77
Employee share option scheme: REBREE
— Exercise of share options — T BB AR 233 20
At 31 March M3A31H 155,633 154,515
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as BEFBMELEZBELHERNT
follows:
Dividend payable
EARE
2018
HK$’000
At 1 April R4A18 -
Dividend declared BEEIRRKRE 65,842
Cash flows Hene (65,842)
At 31 March M3A31H =
31 Commitments 31 &AL
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEXEE
The Group had the following authorised and contracted capital REFEZOEERDEHERRENT -
commitments:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Acquisition of machinery and equipment fEE e KAt 1,882 6,299
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31 Commitments (Continued)

(b) Commitments under operating leases

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under
various non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

HA %55 4R 3R Pft 5

(b) F&EHEERE

AEERBEZHETAEHEQERERKR
REMKEESERENAT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

Not later than one year T B4 6,663 6,118
Later than one year and not later than five years #2i&15{B R BiB5F 11,079 11,635
Later than five years A5 F — 754
17,742 18,507

32 Pension obligations

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. The assets of
the fund are held separately from those of the Group and are managed by
independent professional fund managers. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer's and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month, as appropriate,
as defined in the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance, and thereafter
contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees in
Mainland China. The employees contribute up to 8% of their basic
salaries, while the Group contributes to retirement plans approximately at
13% to 20% of the basic salaries of its employees in Mainland China, and
has no further obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

32 BEREEE

NEBELZHEBREELEA BB IUETIAE
By rRAEFAHMELESHB(REST
B -EezEERAEEEMEESFHF
A THBVEEESKEETE - RERES
HE - AEEREEEHANGHIEAES A
Bl EE 2 BE HE 25%F A A8l #
e e ERESIEHARTE  BEERE
Stz ERH AT A1,5008 T (HEE) @ 7§
A B FEREIMERK o

RIEFFBEAMERREZRRTE  AEERES
BAiE B MBI RE B RRETEIE LK -
BEARSREEAFHE Z8%IEL MR - MA
SERARERARGEELEPEANMERER
¥ & H13%E20%.2 #5350 - B AR E R
L RKE N 2 BB SRR AR < RIK
BE 2R RKE BB RE B 2 RIKET
BNEE -
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33 Related party transactions

33 BEALRS

The Company’s directors consider there is no ultimate holding company
as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

(a) The following significant transactions were carried out

(b)

144 Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited

with related parties:

12018F 201743 A31H » AR A EER AL
BB AT o

(a) AEBMERBEALTZEARZUT

Name of related party/ 2018 2017
nature of transaction BEALZER XZHE HK$'000 HK$'000
The Bright Printing Press and Paper Products ¥ BA#e[ =X EN 7% 4% @ B
Limited (i) BRAT()
— Sales of merchandise to the Group —AREEHEE®R 302 425
— Management fees paid/payable to the -B/EMAEE
Group ZEREH 22 22
— Handling fees paid/payable to the Group —-B/EMAEEZ
BEYEE 12 150
First Success Technology Limited (i) HERHEE AR A F()
— Rental expense paid/payable by the Group ~ —AEEE FERS
ZHE 1,075 1,018
— Management fees paid/payable to the —B/BNAEE
Group ZEREH 132 132

Note:

(i)  Both companies are wholly owned by Mr. Yeung Chi Hung, Johnny, Mr.

Yuen Yee Sai, Simon and Mr. Chow Man Yan, Michael, directors of the

Company.

In the opinion of the Company's directors, the above related party
transactions were conducted in the usual course of business of
the Group and in accordance with terms mutually agreed by the

respective parties.

Key management compensation

Key management personnel are the Company's executive directors.
Details of compensation of key management personnel are disclosed

in Note 29 to the financial statements.
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34 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the Company 34 AAFREEEBERLFAEEH
(a) *AFEEAER
As at 31 March

(a) Balance sheet of the Company

M3H31H
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets EREEE
___ Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZEE 142468 142,468
Current assets MENBE
Other receivables H th JE U I8 259 237
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 205,129 196,586
Current income tax recoverable AT Bl & HAFT 15 8 - 6
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEY 1,036 452
Total currentassets L 197,281
Current liabilities mEN A&
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R E At T FRIE 5,120 1,485
Current income tax liabilities EHMSHAE 44 =
Total current liabilities n@SfEeE afed 1,485
_Netcurrentassets nBEESE 201280 195,796
Net assets EEFE 343,728 338,264
Equity e Fa
Capital and reserves attributable to the EBARRRERBAZ
Company's equity holders BRAS R & 4
Share capital N 42,107 42,026
Other reserves HE S 256,393 262,046
Retained earnings IRER & A 45,228 34,192
Total equity EEAE 343,728 338,264

AKRAIEEBEXREMN2018F6H200 &
EESWENEAUTEERERE -

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 20 June 2018 and was signed on its behalf.

YEUNG CHI HUNG, JOHNNY YUEN YEE SAI, SIMON

Chairman Joint Deputy Chairman
FE BEEIEE
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34 Balance sheet and reserve movement of the Company

(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(b) ARBRBEEH

3 XAREEEERRFEREEE#E)

Contributed Share
Share surplus option Retained
premium (Note (i)) reserve  earnings Total
BB B E
IR 4558 (BfFEE(i)) #E REEA At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2016 201654 81H 112,399 138,800 10,837 25,531 287,567
Profit and total comprehensive FRRENRZE
income for the year W iage - - - 33,813 33,813
Employee share option scheme: & B R AT &l -
— Lapse of share options —BBRRIE RN - = (60) 60 =
— Proceeds from shares issued — T AR AR T 2
upon exercise of share 1TRAD 2 PAS
options I8 70 - - - 70
— Exercise of share options e id 20 = (20) = =
Dividends paid EAIARE - = - (25212) (25,212
At 31 March 2017 20173 H31H 112,489 138,800 10,757 34,192 296,238
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNREE
income for the year s 4a e - - - 50,821 50,821
Employee share option scheme: & BiEARAET 2 -
— Lapse of share options —BERRIE RN = = (6,457) 6,457 =
— Proceeds from shares issued — 1T
upon exercise of share BIIRN 2
options FT{S3IE 804 = = = 804
— Exercise of share options —1T{E AR 233 - (233) - -
Dividends paid EIARE = = - (46,242) (46,242)
At 31 March 2018 720183 A31H 113,526 138,800 4,067 45,228 301,621
Note: Mok -

(i)  Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset
value of a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant
to the Group's reorganisation in March 2000.
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